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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Mankind Pharma Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Mankind Pharma Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Cquity for the year then ended, and notes to the stundalone Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its profit including other comprchensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board Report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equily of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or etror.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

a) The standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,2019,
included in these Standalone Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by one of the joint
auditors with a predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements
on July 19, 2019.

The information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019, has been reclassified from the
financial statements previously presented to conform to the presentation of the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2020.




b)

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information as regard Company’s
share of net profit after tax of partnership firms amounting to Rs.377.91 lakhs included in the
accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company whose financial
statements and other financial information have been audited by the other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the Company’s share
of net profit after tax included in respect of these partnership firms investment is based solely
on the report of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our report on the other legal and
regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of above matters in respect of reliance on the
work done and the report of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(2)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
eftectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;




(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 34 to the standalone Ind AS

financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number:

301003E/E300005
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per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership Number: 096766
UDIN: 20096766AAAACI4604
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: August 20, 2020

For Goel Gaurav & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number :
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Gaurav Goel
Proprietor
Membership Number: 528323
UDIN: 20528323AAAACO03714
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: August 20, 2020




Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Mankind Pharma Limited (the Company)

(i) (@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(b)

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

details and situation of fixed assets.

All fixed assets were physically verified by the management in the previous year in accordance
with a planned programme of verifying them overa period of three years which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed by us, the title deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant and
equipment are held in the name ol the company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
physical verification. Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at
year end and no material discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans and advances given,
investments made and, guarantees, given have been complied with by the company. The
Company has not advanced loans to directors / to a company in which the Director is interested
to which provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 apply and the Company has not
granted any security in terms of the Section 185 and 186 of the Act and hence not commented
upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of Drugs and pharmaceutical products
and related services, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records
have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the

same.

s

'

( GHAZIABAD

f L
i
e



(vii)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax,
cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by
us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable except for below:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which Due Date of
Statute the Dues (Rs.in Lacs) the amount Date | Payment
relates
The Payment of 75.61 March 2019 April | Not yet paid
Employees Statutory 2020
Provident Provident
Funds and Fund
Miscellaneous
provision
Act, 1952

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute, are as follows:

Amount of )
Period to | .
Demand Amount . Forum where
. ] . which  the | . .
without netting | paid under dispute is
Name of . amount .
Nature of dues of amount paid | protest pending
Statute relates
under protest
. (Rs. in | (Financial
(Rs. in Lacs) Lacs) Year)
Income Disallowances and | 1,213.91 825.30 2010-11  to | Commissioner
Tax Act, | additions to taxahle 2014-15 and | of Income Tax
1961 income. 2016-17 (Appeal),
New Delhi
Income Disallowances and | 353.50 134.47 2015-16 Income Tax
Tax Act, | additions to taxable Assessing
1961 income. Officer
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Amount of Period to
Demand Amount . Forum where
. . . which  the | .

without netting | paid under dispute

Name of . amount X
Nature of dues of amount paid | protest pending

Statute relates

under protest

. (Rs. in | (Financial

(Rs. in Lacs) Lacs) Year)
Assam Sales tax demand | 20.71 - 2010-11  to | Assistant
Value on various matter 2017-18 Commissioner
Added of Taxes
Tax Act,
2003
BIHAR Sales tax demand | 5.02 - 2014-15 Deputy
VAT on various matter Commissioner
ACT, of
2005 Commercial

Taxes

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing dues to banks. The
Company did not have any outstanding loan or borrowing dues in respect of a financial
institution, or government or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term
loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements and according to the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence,
reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not

commented upon.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred

to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number:
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per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership Number: 096766
UDIN: 20096766 AAAACI4604
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: August 20, 2020

For Goel Gaurav & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number :
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Membership Number: 528323
UDIN: 20528323AAAACO3714
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: August 20, 2020




ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MANKIND PHARMA LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mankind Pharma Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by (he Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating eftectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Kinancial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP ' For Goel Gaurav & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: ICAI Firm Registration Number :
301003E/E300005 022467C ZGNRIDS
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per Vishal Sharma Gaurav Goel %ﬁ‘iﬁﬁ?kﬁbf
Partner Proprietor
Membership Number: 096766 Membership Number: 528323
UDIN: 20096766 AAAACI4604 UDIN: 20528323AAAACO3714
Place of Signature: New Delhi Place of Signature: New Delhi

Date: August 20, 2020 Date: August 20, 2020



Mankind Pharma Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
All amounts are in INR Jacs uniess otherwise stated

Particulars Notes As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 _
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 91,735.03 76,215.56
Capital work-in-proaress 3 14,392.81 21,004.15
Investment properties 4 551.25 1,039.10
Intangible assets 5 2,190.03 536.39
Intangible assets under development 5 369.46 107.06
Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 6 138,950.83 138,384.62
Financial assets
(i) Investments 7 0.25 0.25
(ii) Other financial assets 8 1,234.79 1,148.85
income tax assets (net) 9 4,638.52 5.749.09
Deferred tax assets (net) 21 2,104.95 -
Other non-current assets 10 2,082.56 2,642.65
Total non-current assets 258,250.48 246,827.72
Current assets
Inventories 11 53,347.67 48,150.08
Financial assets
(1) Investments 7 39,416.25 31,416.57
(ii} Trade receivables 13 41,862.03 13,926.86
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 7.749.78 7.247.91
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 15 12,045.02 -
(v) Loans 16 21,188.20 25,133.93
(vi) Others 8 213.27 176.04
Other current assels 10 18,767.74 11,896.47
194,589.96 137,947.86
Assels held for sale 12 270.20 281.37
Total current assets 194,860.16 138,229.23
Total assets —453,11064 _______ 385,056.95
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Eaquity share capital 17 4,005.88 4,005.88
Olher equity 18 361,139.42 302,475.81
Total equity 365,145.30 306,481.69
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
(i) Olhars 24 255.69 -
pinvisiaons 20 4,641.37 3,242.86
Deferred Lax liabilities (net) 21 - 1,799.58
Other non-current liabilities 22 1,491.68 1,017.98
Total non-current liabilities 6,388.74 6,060.42
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowinas 19 - 19,000.00
(ii) Trade pavables 23
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 4,325.27 5,013.20
(b) total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 44,397.74 33,688.04
(iii) Other financial liabilities 24 6.011.39 3.756.28
Provisions 20 16,922.55 7.732.41
Income tax liabilities (net) 9 5,657.58
Other current liabilities 22 4,262.07 3,324.91
Total current liabilities 81,576.60 72,514.84
Total liabilities 87,965.34 78,575.26
‘Total equity and liabilities 453,110.64 385,056.95
Summary of sianificant accounting policies 2
Commitments and contingencies 34
Other notes to accounts 35-54
The accompanying notes are formina an intearal part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and bn behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
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per Vishal Sharma
Partner

Minl Arora Arjun\Juvieia

Managing Director Whole-qime Director

Membership No. 096766 DIN - 00704292 DIN - 00704349

For Goel Gaurav & Co.
Chartered Accountanls
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Gaurav Goel \ Pradeep Chugh Ashutosh Dhawan ] .
Proprietor W Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer % 3 Q=
Membership No. 528323 Membership No. ACS 18711 =5

Place: New Delhi ' Place: New Delhi
Date: 20 August 2020 Date: 20 August 2020



Mankind Pharma Limlited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
_All amounts are In INR lacs unless otherwlsa stated

Year ended Year ended
Particul
bl L 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1 Income
Revenue from operations 25 479,441.45 382,905.88
Other income 26 9,384.88 _ _6,433.45
Total Income (I) 488,826.33 389,339.33
I1 Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 27 43,487.13 25,451.87
Purchases of stock-in-trade 27 118,255.19 111,585.23
Changes In Inventories of finished goods, work In progress and 28 (4,450.76) 2,207.75
stock In trade
Employee benefits expense 29 99,146.93 78,502.00
FInance costs 30 1,061.60 3,904.30
Depreclatlon and amortization expense 31 6,176.62 3,839.22
Impairment of non-current assets 32 (b) 9,057.99 201.70
Impalrment losses on financlal assets 32 (c) 3,100.00 -
Other expenses 32 (a) 86,499.31 94,517.76
Total expenses (II) 362,334.01 320,209.83
11 Profit before tax (I-II) 126,492.32 ~69,129.50
IV Tax Expense:
Current tax 33 33,657.69 18,481.32
Deferred tax 33 (3,511.06) (1,019.97)
Adjustment of tax relating to earller perlods 33 522.95 264.62
Total tax expense (IV) 30,669.58 17,725.97
V Profit for the year (III- IV) 95,822.74 o 51,403.53
VI Other comprehenslve Income / (loss)
(1) Item that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss
- Remeasurement galn / (loss) of the defined benefit plan (1,126.00) (252 44)
(ii) Income Lax relating to item that will not be reclassified to
piofit o1 loss
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) of the defined benefit plan 393.47 88.21
Other romprehensive Income / (Inss) for tha year (732,53) (164.23_)_
VII Total comprehensive Income for the year (V+VI) 95,090.21 51,239.30
Earnings per equity share (EPS) (face value of INR 1 each) (refer note 46):
Basic EPS (in INR) 23.92 12.83
Diluted EPS (in INR) 23.92 12.83
Summary of significant accounting policles 2
Commitments and contingencles 34
Other noles W accuunts 35-54

The accompanying notes are forming an Integral part of these financlal statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batilboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. no. 301003E/E300005 _.azzas

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
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Managing Director
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2020

Allamounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated
Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2020

A. Cash flow from Operating activities

Profit before tax 126.492.32 69.129.50
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciatlon and amortisation expense 6.176.62 3.839.24
Net forelan exchanae differences (123.93) (46.50)
Loss/ (galn) on disposal of property, plant and 62.05 100.70
eauloment
Loss/ (qain) on sale of Investment property (901.58) (69.10)
Impalrment allowance for non-current assets 9.057.99 -
Impairment allowance for financlal assets 3.100.00 =
Finance income (1.696.50} (2.017.79)
Flnance costs 382.93 3.904.30
Unrealised qain on current investments measured at FVTPL (992.76) (2.279.47)
Reallsed galn on current investments measured at FYTPL (636.61) -
Dividend income from financlal assets measured at FVTPL (294.74) (0.06)
Dividend income from subsidlary (0.04) -
Deferred government grant income = (143.90)
Rent (amortisation of operating lease) . 20.79
Trade and other recelvable balances written off 35.79 81.35
Allowance for expected credit loss 75.05 =
Allowance for doubtful loans - 316.10
Impairment allowance for doubtful advances 401.74 17.47
Share in profit/ loss of partnership firms (net) (922.77) (516.62)
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/ Decrease In trade receivables (27.922.08) 9.238.94
(Increase)/ Decrease In inventorles (5,197.59) (1,268.94)
(Increase)/ Decrease In financlal asset - others (123.17) (95.35)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other asset (6,521.25) (869.19)
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 9,462.65 4,064.53
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payable 10,021.77 (5.444.68)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabillty 1,781.40 (1,316.10)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabllity 1.656.14 1.600.48
Cash generated from operations 123,373.43 78.245.70
Income tax paid (27.412.49), _(24.593.72)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 95,960,94 53.651.98
B. Cash flow from Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eauipment 126.79 (100.70)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (16.549.55) (16.464.48)
Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities (net) (9.525.95) (35,659.87)
Amount invested In/withdrawn from partnership firms (net) 570.46 (5.626.31)
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 1.388.70 69.10
Purchase of investment in tinancial instruments {41.195.91) (400.00)
I'roceeds trom sale of financial instruments 31,825.60 14,853.00
Dividend received 794,78 0,06
Loan to related parties 705.62 10.643.40
Loan to other parties 140.11 109.39
Bank deposit not considered as cash and cash eauivalents (12,045,02) E
Interest received (finance income) _1.696,50 _2,017,79
Net cash outflow from investing activities (39,567.87) (30,557.72)
C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Interest paid (359.86) (4,088.49)
Proceeds from borrowinas 19,400.00 29,950,00
Repayment of borrowings {34.400.00) (46,950 UV
Payment of principal portion of lease liabllitles (81.67)
Pavment of interest on lease liabilities (23.07) =
Dividends paid (30.244.43) (2,403.53)
Dividend distribution tax (6,182,171 (489,36)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (55.891.20) (23,981 38)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 501,87 (887.12)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 7.247.91 8.135.03
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 7.749.78 7,247.91
Companents of rash and rash equivalents
Balances with banks
- On current account 7,023.61 7.235.70
Cash on hand 10.51 12,21
Cheques on hand 715.66 -
7.749.78 7.247.91
Summary of sianificant accountina policies 2
Commitments and continaencies 34
Other notes to accounts 35-54

The accompanvina notes are formina an intearal part of these financial statements

As per our repoit of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Req. no. 301003E/E300005

per Vishal Sharma
Partner

Membership No, 096766

For Goel Gaurav & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Fipm Req. no, 022467C

n behalf of the Board of Directors

o

heetal Arora
Managing Director

DIN - 00704292

' Pradeep Chugh Ashutosh Dhawan™
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Gh/’\Z'ABADJ 2 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Propriator £
Membership No. 528323 /_.{_}{, Membership No. ACS 18711
Place: New Delhi £y Place : New Delhi

Date: 20 August 2020 Date : 20 August 2020




Mankind Pharma Limited
Standalone Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

Equlty share capltal

Particulars Note Amount
Equity shares of INR 1 each Issued, subscribed and fully pald
As at 01 Aprli 2018 4,005.88
Changes In equlty share capltal during the year P
As at 31 March 2019 17 4,005.88
Changes In equlty share capltal during the year
As at 31 March 2020 17 4,005.88
Other equity
i ) Reserves and Surplus

Part

LLElET Capltal Reserve General reserve Security premium Retalned enrnings fotal

éalance as at 01 April 2018 - 23,774.24 4,211.74 267,703.12 295,689.10
Profit for the year E = = 51,403,53 51,403.53
Other comprehenslve income for the year, net of Income tax - - - (164,23) (164.23)
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - - 51,239.30 51,239.30
Transactlons with owners In thelr capaclty as owners:
Less @ Loss on account of demerger (refer note 18.4) (41,559.70) - - (41,559.70)
Less : Dividend on equity shares - E (2,403.53) (2,403.53)
Less : Dlvidend distribution tax - - - (489.36) (489.36)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (41,559.70) 23,774.24 4,211.74 316,049.53 302,475.81
Profit for the year - - 95,822.74 95,822.74
| Other comprehenslve. Income for the year, net of Income tax = - = (732.53) (732.53)
Total comprehenslve Income for the year - - - 95,090.21 95,090.21
Transactlons with owners In thelr capaclty as owners:
Less : Dlvidend on equlty shares (refer note 45) - - (30,244.43) (30,244.43)
Less : Dividend distribution tax (6,182.17) (6,182,17)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 _ (41,559.70) 23,774.24 4,211.74 374,713.14 361,139.42
Summary of signifirint accnonting policies ?
Commitments and contingencles 34
Other notes to accounts 35-54

The decomipdnying noles dre forming an nleyeal part of thesy financlal stalamants

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batlibo! & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. no. 301003E/E3

per Vishal Sharma
PFartner

Membership No, 096766
For Goel Gaurav & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. no. 023467C

A
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are In INR lacs unless otherwise stated

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Mankind Pharma Limited ("Mankind” or “the Company”) Is a public llmlted company domlciled In Indla and has Its registered office at 208, Okhla
Phase III, Delhl. The Company Is principally engaged In the manufacturing and trading of pharmaceutical and health care products. The Company
has three manufacturing facllities at Paonta Sahlb In the state of Himachal Pradesh, one manufacturing facltity In state of Slkkim and three in-
house research and development centres at IMT Manesar, Gurgaon , Haryana to carry out research In pharmaceutical products.

These standalone financlal statements were approved for Issue In accordance with a resolution of the directors on 20 August 2020.

Significant Accounting Pollcies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policles adopted in the preparatlon of these Indlan Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) flnanclal
statements. These policles have been consistently applled to all the years except where newly Issued accounting standard Is Inltlally adopted.

Basis of preparation of Standalone Financial Statements

These standalone financlal statements of the Company have been prepared In accordance with Indlan Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notlfled
under the Companles (Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Dlvislon II of
Schedule III to the Companles Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT). These standalone financlal statements are presented In INR and all
values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), except when otherwlse Indicated.

The financlal statements have been prepared on a historlcal cost conventlon, except for the following assets and llabllities:
i) Certaln flnancial assets and Ilabilitles that Is measured at falr value

II) Assets held for sale-measured at falr value less cost to sell

IIl) Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at falr value

iv) Share based payments

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and llabllities in the balance sheet based on current/non- current classification. An asset Is treated as current when
- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle :

- Held primarily for purpose of trading

- Expected to be reallzed within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- cash or cash equlvalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A labllity Is current when:
- It Is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
- IL s held primarlly for purpose of trading
- It Is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
There I8 no uncondlitional right to defer the selllemnent of the labllity for at least twelve months after the reporting perlod

All other liabllitles are classifled as non current,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabllitles are classified as non- current assets and llabilities.

The operating cycle Is the time between the acquisltion of assets for processing and thelr reallzatlon In cash and cash equivalents. the Company
has Identified twelve months as Its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and equlpment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreclation and accumulated Impairment losses, If any. Capltdl work In
progress s stated at cost, net of arcumulated Impalrment loss, if any. The cusl cornprises of purchase price, taxes, dutics, freight and other
Incldental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition and Installatlon of the concerned assets and are further adjusted by the amount
of Input tax credit avalled wherever applicable.

Such cost Includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term constructlon projects If the recognition
criterla are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately
based on thelr specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement If the recognlition criteria are satisfied. All other repalr and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissloning of an asset after its use Is included in the cost of the respectlve asset if
Lhe 1ecuynilivn criterld for & provigsion are met.

Subsequent costs are included in asset's carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as approprlate, only when 1t is probable that future
economic benefit associated with the Item wlll flow to the Company and the cost of Item can be measured reliably.

An Item of property, plant and equipment and any slgnlificant part Initlally recognized Is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from Its use or disposal. Any galn or loss arlsing on derecognlition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrylng amount of the asset) Is Included in the Income statement when the asset Is derecognlsed.

Capital work- in- progress Includes cost of property, plant and equipment under Installation / under development as at the balance sheet date.
The residual values, useful llves and methods of depreclation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financlal year end and
adjusted prospectlvely, If appropriate.

Depreciation on property, plant and equlpment is calculated on prorata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated
by management. The useful life is as follows:

Assets Useful life (in years)
Bullding 30 and 60

Plant and Equipment 10 - 15

Furnlture and Fixtures 10

Vehicles 8 and 10

Office Equlpment 5

Mobile Phones 2

Computers 3

Servers and Networks 6
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert. In certaln plant and machinerles and
moblle phones , useful lives are lower than those specified by schedule II to the Companles Act 2013 and are depreclated over the estimated
useful lives of 10 years and 2 years respectlvely, in order to reflect the actual usage of assets. The resldual values are not more than 5% of the
orlginal cost of the assets. The asset's residual values and useful llves are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate.

Lease hold Improvements are depreclated on stralght line basls over shorter of the asset's useful life and thelr Initlal agreement period,

Leasehold land Is amortized on a stralght line basls over the unexplred perlod of thelr respectlve lease.

Investment Properties

Property that Is held for long term rental yields or for capltal appreciation or for both , and that Is not occupied by the Company, Is classified as
Investment property, Investment property Is measured Inltially at its cost, Including related transaction cost and where applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequent to Initial recognition, Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreclation and accumulated impairment loss, If any.

Subsequent expenditure Is capitallzed to assets carrying amount only when It Is probable that future economic benefits assoclated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. When signlficant parts of investment property are
required to be replaced at Intervals, the Company depreclates them separately based on their respective useful ilves. All other repalr and
malntenance cost are expensed when Incurred,

Though the Company measures Investment property using cost based measurement, the falr value of Investment property Is disclosed In the
notes. Falr values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an external Independent valuer applying a valuatlon model as per
Ind AS 113 " Falr value measurement".

Investment propertles are derecognised elther when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic beneflt [s expected from thelr disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrylng amount of the asset Is
recognised In profit or loss in the perlod of derecognition.

Investment propertles are depreciated using stralght line method over thelr estimated useful life.

Transfer of property from Investment property to the property, plant and equipment Is made when the property is no longer held for long term
rental yields or for capltal appreciation or both at carrying amount of the property transferred.

Intangible assets
Separately acquired intangible assets

Intanglble assets acquired separately are measured on Inltial recognition at cost. Cost of intanglble assets acquired In business comblination s
thel fail value al Lhe date of acquisition. Following Inltial recagnition, Intanaible assets are carrfed at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated Impairment losses, If any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized developiient cusl, are not capitalized and the
related expenditure Is reflected in statement of Profit and Less in the period In which Whe expendlture |s Incurred, Cost comprises the purchase
price and any attributable cost of bringing the assel Ly ils wurking conditlan far Its Intended use,

I'he useful lives of Intanglble assets are assessed as elther finlte or Indefinite. Intanglble assets with finite llves are amortized over their useful
economic lives and assessed for Impairment whenever there is an Indicatlon that the intanglble asset may be impalred. The amortization perlod
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finlte useful life Is reviewed at least at the end of cach reporting perlod. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumptlon of future economic beneflts embodied In the asset is accounted for by changing the
amorttzation perlod or method, as approprlate, and are treated as changes In accounting estimates. The amortization expense on Intanglble assets
wlth finlte lives Is recognized In the statement of profit and loss In the expense category consistent with the functlon of the Intangible assets.

Intanyible assets with Indefinite useful lives are not amartlzed, hut are tested for Impalrment annually, elther Individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of Indefinite ife Is reviewad annually to delerinine whathar the Indefinite life continues to ba supportable, If
not, the change In useful life from Indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basls.

Galns or losses arlsing from dlsposal of the Intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognlzed In the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed off.

Intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life as under

Assets Useful life (in years)
Computer Software 3
Other intangibles 27 months

Research and development cost

Research costs are expensed as Incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project Is recognized as an Intanglble asset when the
Company can demonstrate all the following:

1) The technlical feaslbllity of completing the Intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

ii) Its intention to complete the asset;

ill) 1ts ability to use or sale the asset;

Iv) How the asset will generate future economlc benefits;

v) The avallabllity of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sale the asset; and

vl) The ablllty to measure rellably the expendliture attrlbutable to the Intanglble asset during development.

FollowIng the Initlal recognlition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requlring the asset to be carrled at cost less
any accumulated amortizatlon and accumulated Impairment losses. Amortization of the asset beglns when development Is complete and the asset
is avallable for use. It Is amortized on stralght Iine basls over the estimated useful life. During the perlod of development, the asset Is tested for

Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impalred. If any indication exists, or when
annual Impairment testing for an asset Is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) falr value less costs of dlsposal and its value In use. The recoverable amount is determined for
an Individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash Inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
When the carrylng amount of an asset or CGU exceeds Its recoverable amount, the asset Is considered impalred and is written down to its
recoverable amount. e
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax dlscount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks speclfic to the asset. In determining falr value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactlons are taken Into account. If no such transactlons can be Identifled, an appropriate valuatlon model Is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companles or other avallable falr value Indicators.

The Company bases Its Impalrment calculation on detalled budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Caompany's CGUs to which the Individual assets are allocated, These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a perlod of flve years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate Is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections
beyond periods covered by the most recent budaets/forecasts, the Comoany extrapolates cash flow projections In the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an Increasing rate can be justifled. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the products, Industrles, or country or countrles In which the Company operates, or for the market In which the asset is
used.

Impalrment losses of continuing operations, Including Impairment on inventorles, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for
propertles previously revalued with the revaluatlon surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the Impairment is recognised in OCI up to the
amount of any prevlous revaluation surplus,

For assets excluding goodwlll and intangible assets having indefinite life, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there Is an indlcation that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exlst or have decreased. If such indication exlsts, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU'’s recoverable amount. A previously recognlsed Impairment loss Is reversed only If there has been a change In the
assumptlons used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last Impalrment loss was recognised, The reversal is limlted so that the
carrylng amount of the asset does not exceed jts recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciatlon, had no Impalrment loss been recognised for the asset In prior years. Such reversal Is recognised In the statement of profit and loss
unless the asset Is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation Increase,

Goodwill Is tested for impalrment annually as at March 31 and when circumstances Indicate that the carrylng value may be impalred. Impairment
Is determined for goodwlil by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwilil relates. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU Is less than Its carrylng amount, an Impalrment loss Is recognised. Impalrment losses relating to goodwlll cannot
be reversed In future perlods. Intanglble assets with Indefinite useful lives are tested for Impalrment annually as at March 31 at the CGU level, as
appropriate, and when clrcumstances indlcate that the carrylng value may be impalred.

Financial instruments

A financlal thstrument 1s any wunlracl that glves rise to a financial asset of one enlily and a flnanclal llabllity or equity Instrument of another
entity.

Financial Assats

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- Those to be measured subsequently at falr value (elther through other comprehensive Income, or through profit or loss)
- Those measured at amortized cost

The clagsificatlon of financial assels al inilial recoynilivn depends on the financial asset's contractual cash How characteristics and the Company's
buslness model for managing them

Initial recognition and measurement

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedlent, the Company Initially measures a financlal asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs.

Trade recelvables that do not contain a slgnificant financing component or for which the Company has applled the practical expedlent and are
measured at the transactlon price determined under Ind AS 115, Refer to the accounting policles in sectlon 'Revenue from contracts with
customers'. '

In order for a financlal asset to be classifled and measured at amortised cost or falr value through OCI, It needs to glve rise to cash flows that are
‘solely payments of princlpal and interest (SPPI)' on the princlpal amount outstanding. Ihis assessment Is referred to as the SPPI test and Is
performed at an Instrument level. Financlal assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classifled and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company's business model for managling financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets In order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the flnancial assets, or both.

Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold flnancial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows while financlal assets classifled and measured at falr value through OCI are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement financlal assets are classified In following categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

- Financial assets at falr value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
- Financial assets deslgnated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
- Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A ‘flnanclal asset’ Is measured at the amortised cost if both the followIng condltlons are met:
a) Business Model Test : The objective Is to hold the financlal asset to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the
Instrument prlor to Its contractual maturlty to realize Its fatr value changes) and;

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financlal asset give rise on speclfic dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of princlpal and interest on princlpal amount outstanding.
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone flnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

This category is most relevant to the Company. After Initlal fmeasurement, such flnancial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost Is calculated by taking into account any dlscount or premium on acqulsitlon and fees
or costs that are an Integral part of EIR. EIR Is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash recelpts over the expected life of the
financlal Instrument or @ shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrylng amount of the financlal asset. When calculating the effective
Interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial Instrument but does not
consider the expected credit losses. The EIR amortization Is Included In other Income in profit or loss. The losses arising from impalrinent are
recognized In the profit or loss. This category generally applles to trade and other recelvables,

Financlal assets at fair value through 0CI (FVTOCI) (debt Instruments)
A flnanclal asset’ Is classlfled as at the FVTOCI If both of the following criterla are met:

a) Buslness Model Test : The objective of financial Instrument Is achleved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the Debt Instrument glve rise on speclfic dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of princlpal and interest on princlpal amount outstanding.

Debt Instrument Included within the FVTOCI category are measured inltlally as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements
are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI), except for the recognitlon of interest Income, impalrment galns or losses and forelgn
exchange gains or losses which are recognized In statement of profit and loss and computed in the same manner as for financlal assets measured
at amortlsed cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCL. Upon derecognition, the cumulative falr value changes recognised In
OCI Is reclasslified from the equlty to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financlal assets at falr value through proflt or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes In fair value recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. This category includes derlvative Instruments and listed equity Investments which the Group had not irrevocably
elected to classify at falr value through OCI. Dividends on listed equlty investments are recognised In the statement of profit and loss when the
right of payment has been established.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initlal recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably Its equity [nvestments as equity instruments designated at falr value
through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financlal Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification Is determined on an Instrument-by-instrument hasls. Fauity Instruments which are held for trading and contingent conslderatlon
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination te which Tnd AS103 applies are classified as at FYTPL,

Galns ani losses on these financlal assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dlvidends are recognised as other Income in the statement of profit
and |oss when the right of payment hos been established, excent when the Company benafits from such proceeds as o recovery of part of the cusl
of the financial asset, in which rase, such gains are recordad In OCI, Equlty Instruments deslgnated at falr value through OCT are not subject to
impalrment assessment.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivatlve embedded In a hybrld contract, with a financla! llabllity or non-financlal host, Is separated from the host and accounted lor as a
separate derlvatlve If: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivatlve would meet the definition of a derlvative; and the hybrid contract Is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derlvatives are measured at fair value with changes In fair value recognised In proflt or loss. Reassessment only occurs If there is elther
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly madifies the cash flows that would otherwise be requlred or a reclassiflcation of a financial
asset oul of the falr valiue through profit or loss category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or ,where applicable, a part of a flnanclal asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarlly derecognised (l.e.
removed from the Company's statement of financlal position) when:

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have explred, or

o the Company has transferred Its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligatlon to pay the received cash
flows In full without materlal delay to a third party under a "pass through” arrangement and elther;

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred Its rights to recelve cash flows from an asset or has entered Into a pass-through arrangement, It evaluates If
and to what extent it has retalned the risks and rewards of ownershlp, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing Involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated llability. The transferred asset and the assoclated
liability are measured on a basls that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retalned.

Continulng involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the orlginal carrylng amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applles expected credit losses( ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
the following financlal asset and credlt risk exposure

= Financlal assets measured at amortized cost;
o FInancial assets measured at fair value through other comprehenslve income(FVTOCI);

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due In accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, dlscounted at an approximatlon of the orlginal effective Interest rate. The expected cash flows will Include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are Integral to the contractual terms,

ECLs are recognised In two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a slgnificant Increase In credit risk since Initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant Increase in credit risk since inltlal recognition, a loss allowance Is required for credit losses
expected over the remalning life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL),
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The Company follows "simplified approach” for recognition of Impalrment loss allowance on:
S Trade recelvables or contract revenue regeivables;

B All lease recelvables resulting from the transactlons within the scope of Ind AS 116 -Leases

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credlt risk. Rather , It recognizes Impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from Its Inltlal recognltion. The Company uses a provislon matrix to determine impalrment loss
allowance on the portfollo of trade recelvables. The provision matrix Is based on Its historlcally observed default rates over the expected life of
trade recelvable and Is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes In the forward looking estimates are analysed.

ECL Impalrment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the perlod Is recognized as Income/ expense In the statement of proflt and loss.
This amount Is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ In the statement of proflt and loss. The balance sheet presentatlon for varlous flnanclal
Instruments is described below:

(a) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, l.e., as an Integral part of the
measurement of those assets In the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Untll the asset meets write-off
criterla, the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL Is presented as a provislon In the balance sheet, i.e. as a
Ilability.

(c) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt Instruments measured at FVTOCI, the expected credit losses do not reduce
the carrylng amount In the balance sheet, which remains at falr value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise
If the asset was measured at amortlsed cost Is recognlsed In other comprehenslive Income as the accumulated Impalrment amount.

Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

Financlal liabilities are classlfled at inltial recognition as financlal liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables,
net of directly attributable transactlon costs. All financlal liabllitles are recognised initially at falr value and, In the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transactlon costs. The Company flnanclal llabilities Include loans and borrowlings, trade payables, trade
deposits, retention money, llabllltles towards services, sales Incentive and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial llabllities are classifled in two categories:
(1) Financlal liabilitles at fair value through profit or loss

(i) Financlal liabilitles at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilitles at fair value through profit or loss include financlal liabillties held for trading and financial liabllities designated upon inltial
recognition as at falr value through profit or loss. FInancial llabllities are classified as held for trading If they are Incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing In the near term. This category also includes derlvative financlal Instruments entered Into by the Company that are not deslgnated as
hedgling instruments In hedge relatlonshlp as deflned by Ind AS 109. The separated embedded derlvate are also classifled as held for trading
unless they are deslgnated as effectlve hedging Instruments.

Galns or losses on llabllitles held for trading are recognized In the statement of profit and loss.

Financlal liabllitles designated upon inltlal recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the Initial date of recognition,
and only If the criterla In IND AS 109 are satlsfled. For llabllitles deslgnated as FVTPL, falr value galns/ losses attributable to changes In own credit
risk are recognized in OCIL. These galns/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulatlve gain or loss within equlty. All other changes In falr value of such liability are recognized In the statement of proflt or loss. the Company
has not designated any financial llability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

After initial recognltion, Interest-bearing borrowlings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effectlve interest rate method. Gains
and losses are recognlzed In profit or loss when the llabllitles are derecognised as well as through the Effectlve Interest rate amortization process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
Effective Interest rate. The Effectlve interest rate amortlzation Is Included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade Payables

These amounts represents liabilitles for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid, The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 to 120 days of recognltion. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment Is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized inltially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortlzed cost using Effectlve interest rate method.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financlal guarantee contracts Issued by the Company are those contracts that requlire a payment to be made to relmburse the hoider for a loss it
Incurs because the speclified debtor falls to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt Instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognized Inltially as a llability at falr value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the lIssuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the llability Is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per Impalrment requirements of
IND AS 109 and the amount recognlzed less cumulative amortization.

Derecognition

A financial llabllity Is derecognised when the obligation under the liabillty Is discharged or cancelled or explres. When an existing financial llability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an ex|sting llablllty are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modIfication is treated as the derecognltion of the original llabllity and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respectlve carrying amounts Is recognized In the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financials assets and flnancial llabllitles are offset and the net amount Is reported in the balance sheet If there Is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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Reclassification of financlal assets/ financial liabilities
1

The Company determines classiflcatlon of financial assets and llabllitles on Inltial recognitlon. After Inltial recognition, no reclass!flication Is made
for financial assets which are equity Instruments and financlal llabllities. For financlal assets which are debt Instruments, a reclassiflcatlon is made
only If there Is a change In the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The
Company‘s senlor management determines change In the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the
Company’s operatlons. Such changes are evldent to external parties. A change In the business model occurs when the Company elther beglns or
ceases to perform an actlvity that Is significant to Its operatlons. If the Company reclassifies financlal assets, It applles the reclassification
prospectlvely from the reclassification date which Is the first day of the Immedlately next reporting perlod following the change In business model.
The Company does not restate any previously recognlised galns, losses (Including Impalrment galns or losses) or Interest.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Derlvative flnanclal Instruments are Initlally recognlsed at falr value on the date on which a derlvative contract Is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at falr value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positlve and as financial liabllities when
the fair value Is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derlvative under Ind AS 109 are recognlsed in the statement of profit and {oss. Commodity
contracts that are entered Into and continue to be held for the purpose of the recelpt or dellvery of a non-financial Item In accordance with the
Company’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements are held at cost.

Any gains or losses arlsing from changes in the falr value of derlvatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effectlve portlon of cash
flow hedges, which Is recognised in OCI and later reclassifled to profit or loss when the hedge Item affects proflt or loss or treated as basls
adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results In the recognition of a non-financlal asset or non-financial llablllity.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

(i)  Falr value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the falr vajue of a recognised asset or llabliity or an unrecognised firm
commltment

(il) Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variabllity in cash flows that Is either attributable to a partlcular risk assoclated with a
recognised asset or llabillty or a highly probable forecast transaction or the forelgn currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

(lil) Hedges of a net Investment In a foreign operation

Hedges that meet the strict criterla for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

(i) Fair value hedges

The change In the fair value of a hedging Instrument Is recognised In the statement of proflt and loss as finance costs. The change In the fair value
of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged Item and Is also recognised In the
statement of profit and loss as finance costs,

For falr value hedges relating to Items carrled at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrylng value Is amortised through profit or loss over the
remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR amortization may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the
hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes In Its falr value attributable to the risk belng hedged.

If the hedged item Is derecognlsed, the unamortised fair value Is recognised Immedlately in profit or loss. When an unrecognised flrm commitment
Is designated as a hedged Item, the subsequent cumulative change in the falr value of the flrm commitment attributable to the hedged risk Is
recognised as an asset or llability with a corresponding galn or loss recognlsed in profit and loss.

(il) Cash flow hedges

The effectlve portlon of the galn or loss on the hedging Instrument is recognised in OCI In the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffectlve
portion Is recognised Immediately In the statement of proflt and loss.

The ineffective portlon relating to foreign currency contracts Is recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portlon relating to commodity
contracts is recognised In other Income or expenses.

Amounts recognlised as OCI are transferred to proflt or loss when the hedged transactlon affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial
income or financlal expense Is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs., When the hedged item Is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-
financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to the initial carrylng amount of the non-financial asset or llability.

If the hedging Instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its
designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or toss previously
recognised in OCI remalns separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

Investment in Subsidiaries, associates and joint venture

The investment in subsldlaries, assoclates and Jolnt venture are carrled at cost as per IND AS 27. The Company regardiess of the nature of its
involvement with an entity (the Investee), determines whether It Is a parent by assessing whether It controls the Investee. The Company controls
an Investee when it Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from Its Involvement with the investee and has the abllity to affect those returns
through Its power over the investee. Thus, the Company controls an Investee If and only If It has all the followIng:

(a) power over the Investee;

(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its Involvement with the Investee and

(c) the ability to use its power over the Investee to affect the amount of the returns,

Investments are accounted in accordance with IND AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale. On disposal of Investment, the difference
between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds Is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss

Inventories
a) Basis of valuation:

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing cost of obsolescence, If any. However, materials and
other items held for use In the production of Inventorles are not written down below cost If the finlshed products in which they will
be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net realizabie value is made on an ltem-by-
Item basis.

b) Method of Valuation:

1) Cost of raw materials has been determined by using moving weighted average cost method and comprises all costs of purchase,
duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred In bringing the
inventories to thelr present locatlon and condition.

i) Cost of finlshed goods and work-in-progress includes direct labour and an appropriate share of flxed and variabie production
overheads and excise duty as applicable. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basls of normal capacity of production
facillties. Cost Is determined on moving welghted average basls.

) Cost of traded goods has been determined by using moving welghted average cost method and comprlises all costs of purchase,
dutles, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authoritles) and all other costs incurred lLbrInging the
Inventorles to their present locatlon and conditlon. T =
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Iv) Net realizable value Is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completlon and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Non-current assets held for sale

The Company classlfies non-current assets as held for sale if thelr carrylng amounts wlll be recovered principally through a sale rather than
through continuing use. Such non-current assets classlified as held for sale are measured at the lower of thelr carrylng amount and fair value less
costs to sell . Any expected loss Is recognized Immediately In the statement of proflt and loss.

The criterla for held for sale classification Is regarded as met only when the assets Is avallable for Immedtate sale In [ts present conditlon, subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets, Its sale Is highly probable; and It will genuinely be sold. The Company treats
sale of the asset to be highly probable when:

1) The appropriate level of management Is committed to a plan to sell the asset
I) An actlve programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been Inltiated (If applicable)
Ill} The asset Is belng actively marketed for sale at a price that Is reasonable In relatlon to Its current fair value,
Iv) The sale Is expected to quallfy for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classlflcation , and
V) Actlons required to complete the plan Indicate that It Is unilkely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan

The criteria for held for sale classification Is regarded as met only when the sale Is highly probable and the asset Is avallable for immediate sale In
its present condition and the assets must have actlvely marketed for sale at a price that Is reasonable In relatlon to Its current fair value. Actions
requlred to complete the sale should Indlcate that It Is unlikely that significant changes to the plan to sale these assets wlll be made. Management
must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to quallfy for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classlfication.

Property, plant and equipment and Intanglble assets once classified as held for sale are not depreclated or amortized. Assets and liabillties
classlfied as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the balance sheet.

Taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current perlod's taxable income based on the applicable Income tax rate
adjusted by changes In deferred tax assets and llabllities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Tax expense for the year
comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax, assets and liabllitles are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities In
accordance wlith the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) enacted in Indla by uslng tax rates and
the tax laws that are enacted at the reporting date.

Current Income tax relating to item recognized outside the statement of profit and loss Is recognlzed outslde profit or loss (elther In other
comprehensive Income or equity).Current tax items are recognlzed In correlation to the underlylng transactions elther In OCI or directly In equity,

Management perlodically evaluates posltions taken In the tax returns with respect to sltuations In which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax Is provided using the llability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and llabilities and their
carrylng amounts In the financlal statements. However, deferred tax llabllities are not recognlsed If they arise from the inltial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax Is also not accounted for If It arises from Inltial recognition of an asset or llability in a transaction that Is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transactlon, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax llability arises from the Initlal recognltion of goodwill or an asset or liability In a transactlon that is not a business
comblnation and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

In respect of taxable temporary differences assoclated with Investments in subsidlarles, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and It Is probable that the temporary differences wlll not reverse In the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be avallable agalnst which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credlts and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the inltial recognition of an asset or liabillty in a
transaction that Is not a business combination and, at the time of the transactton, affects nelther the accounting profit nor taxable proflt or loss.

1) In respect of deductlble temporary dlIfferences associated with Investments In subsidiaries, assoclates and interests In joInt ventures, deferred tax

assets are recognlsed only to the extent that It Is probable that the temporary differences wlll reverse In the foreseeable future and taxable profit
wlll be avallable agalnst which the temporary dIfferences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that It Is no longer probable that
sufficlent taxable profit will be avallable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utllized. Unrecognlzed deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that It has become probable that future taxable profits wlill allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and llabllitles are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the lability Is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantlvely enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to Items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of profit and loss (either in
other comprehensive income or In equity). Deferred tax Items are recognized In correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or direct In
equity.

Tax beneflts acquired as part of a business combination, but not satlsfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, are recognised
subsequently If new informatlon about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period
reduce goodwlil related to that acquisltlon If they result from new Informatlon obtained about facts and circumstances exlsting at the acquisition
date. If the carrylng amount of goodwlll Is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the
principle explalned for bargaln purchase gains. All other acquired tax beneflts realized are recognised In proflt or loss.
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Minimum alternate tax (MAT) pald In a year Is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the year. The deferred tax asset Is
recognised for MAT credit avallable only to the extent that It Is probabie that the concerned company wlll pay normal Income tax during the
specified perlod, l.e., the perlod for which MAT credit Is allowed to be carrled forward. In the year in which the company recognlzes MAT credit as
an asset, It Is created by way of credlt to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of reductlon from deferred tax llabillty. The company
reviews the "MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that It Is no longer probable that It will
pay normal tax durlng the specified perlod. .

In the situatlons where any unlt of the Company Is entltled to a tax hollday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India, no deferred tax
(asset or liablllty) Is recognlzed In respect of temporary dlfferences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the unit's gross total
income Is subject to the deduction durlng the tax hollday perlod. Deferred tax In respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax
holiday perlod Is recognlzed In the year In which the temporary dlfferences originate, However, the Company restricts recognlition of deferred tax
assets to the extent it is probable that sufficlent future taxable Income will be avallable agalnst which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For
recognitlon of deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

Revenue from contract with customers

The Company manufactures/ trades and sells a range of pharmaceutical and healthcare products. Revenue from contracts with customers
involving sale of these products is recognized at a polnt In time when control of the product has been transferred, and there are no unfulfilled
obligatlon that could affect the customer's acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products are shipped to specific location and
control has been transferred to the customers, The Company has objectlve evidence that all criterlon for acceptance has been satisfled.

(a) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods Is recognised at the polnt In time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on dellvery of
the goods and there are no unfulflled obllgations.

The Company conslders, whether there are other promises In the contract in which thelr are separate performance obligations, to which a portion
of the transactlon price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company allocates a portion of the
transactlon price to goods bases on Its relatlve standalone prices and also conslders the following:-

(i) variable consideration

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of goods measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recelvable, net
of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. If the conslderation In a contract Includes a variable amount, the
Company estimates the amount of consideration to which It will be entitled In exchange for transferring the goods to the customer,
The variable consideration Is estimated at contract inceptlon and constrained untll It is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the assoclated uncertainty with the variable
conslderatlon Is subsequently resolved.

(ii) Sales Return

The Company accounts for sales returns accrual by recording an allowance for sales returns concurrent with the recognition of
revenue at the time of a product sale. This allowance Is based on the Company’s estimate of expected sales returns. With respect to
established products, the Company considers Its historlcal experience of sales returns, levels of Inventory in the distribution
channel, estimated shelf life, product discontinuances, price changes of competitive products, and the Introductlon of competitive
new products, to the extent each of these factors impact the Company’s business and markets. With respect to new products
introduced by the Company, such products have historically been elther extenslons of an existing line of product where the
Company has historical experlence or in therapeutic categorles where established products exlst and are sold either by the
Company or the Company’s competitors,

(iii) significant Financing Components

In respect of short-term advances from Its customers, using the practical expedlent In Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust
the promised amount of cansideration for the effects of a significant financing component If It expects, at contract Inception, that
the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or
service will be within normal operating cycle.

(iv) Schemes

The Company operates several sales incentive programmes whereln the customers are eliglble for several benefits on achievement
of underlylng conditions as prescribed In the scheme programme such as credit notes, relmbursement, investments etc. Revenue
from contract with customer Is presented deducting cost of all these schemes.

(c) Contract balances

A contract asset Is the right to conslderation in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays conslderation or before payment Is due, a
contract asset Is recognlsed for the earned conslderation that is conditlonal. A recelvables represents the Company's right to an
amount of conslderation that Is uncondltional.

A contract llablilty Is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has recelved consideratlon
(or an amount of conslderation Is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or
services to the customer, a contract llabllity Is recognised when the payment Is made or the payment Is due (whichever Is earlier).
Contract llabllitles are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

A trade receivable Is recognlsed If an amount of conslderation that is uncondltional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideratlon is due). Refer to accounting policies of financlal assets in sectlon (Financial instruments ~ initlal
recognition and subsequent measurement).

Other Operating Revenues
(a) Rental Income

Rental Income arlsing from operating leases on Investment propertles Is accounted for on a stralght - line basls over the lease
terms and Is Included in other Income in the statement of proflt or loss due to its non-operating nature.
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(b) Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured elther at amortised cost ot at falr value through other comprehensive income, interest income s
recorded using the effective |nterest rate (EIR). EIR Is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
recelpts over the expected life of the financlal Instrument or a shorter perlod, where appropriate, to the aross carrying amount of
the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial llabllity, When calculating the effective Interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial Instrument (for example, prepayment,
extenslon, call and similar options) but does nat consider the expected credit losses, Interest Income Is Included In other Income in
the statement of profit and loss.

(¢) Export benefit

Revenue from export benefits arising from Duty entltiement pass book (DEPB scheme), duty drawback scheme, merchandise export
Incentlve scheme are recognised on export of goods In accordance with their respectlve underlylng scheme at fair value of
consideration recelved or recelvable.

2.14 Retirement and other employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non muonetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the
periad In which the employees render the related service are recognlzed In respect of employee service up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amount expected to be pald when the liabllities are settled. The liabllitles are presented as current employee beneflt
obllgations In the balance sheet,

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

a) Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit plan (the “Gratulty Plan”). The Gratuity Plap provides a lump sum payment to employees who
have completad four years and two forty days or more of service at retirement, disabllity or termination of employment, belng an
amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Caompany.

The Gratulty Plan, which Is defined benefit plan, Is managed by Trust with Its Investments maintained with Life insurance
Corporation of Indla. The liabllities with respect to Gratuity Piah are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit credit
method on the balance sheet date, based upon which the Company contributes te the Gratulty Scheme. The difference, if any,
between the actuarlal valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year end and the balance of funds is provided for as assets/
(llabllity) In the books. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liabillty or asset. The
Company recognizes the following changes In the net defined benefit obligation under Employee benefit expense [n statement of
profit or loss:

a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtallments and non-routine settlements

b) Net Interest expense or Income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset celling, excluding amounts included In net
Interest on the net defined benefit llabllity and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts Included |n net interest on the net
defined benefit liabillty), are recognized immediately In the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings
through other comprehensive income In the perlod In which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

b) Provident fund

Retirement benefit In the form of provident fund Is a deflned contribution scheme. the Company has no obligatlon, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable through provident fund scheme as an
expense, when an employee renders the related services. If the contribution payable to scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already pald, the deficit payable to the scheme is recagnized as liabillty after deducting
the contribution already pald, If the contribution already pald exceeds the contribution due for services recelved before the batance
sheet date, then excesses recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction In future
payment or a cash refund.

c) Other employee benefits
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the perlod In which the employee
renders the related service are recognised as a llability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet
date on the basls of actuarlal valuation.

Remeasurement gains and |osses arlsing from experience adjustments and changes In actuarlal assumptions are recagnised In the
period In which they occur, directly In other comprehensive Income and are never reclassifled to statement of profit and loss.
Changes in the present value of the deflined benefit obllgation resulting from plan amendments or curtaliments are recognised
Immed|ately In the statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

2.15 Leases

The Company assesses at contract Inception whether a contract Is, or contalns, a lease. That Is, If the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identifled asset for a perlod of time In exchange for conslderation.

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarlly comprise of lease for land and bullding. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognlses lease llabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

1) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (l.e., the date the underlying asset Is avallable far use),
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreclation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabllities. The cost of right-of-use assets Includes the amount of lease |iabllities recognised, Initlal direct costs Incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease Incentives recelved, Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a stralght-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful llves of the building (i.e. 30 and 60 years).

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreclation Is calculated using the estimated useful lIfe of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to Impairment, Refer to the
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Lease Llabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease llabllities measured at the present value of lease payments to he made
over the lease term, The lease payments Include fixed payments (Including In substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend en an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be pald under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exerclsed by the Company and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, |f the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Varlable lease payments that do not depend on
an Index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are Incurred to produce Inventories) In the period In which the event or conditian that
triggers the payment occurs.,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses |ts Incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate Implicit In the lease Is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilitles Is increased to
reflect the accretion of Interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In additlon, the carrying amount of lgase labilities is remeasured If
there Is a modification, a change In the lease term, a change In the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change In
an Index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change In the assessment of an optlon to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemptlon to its short-term leases (l.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase optlon). It also applles the lease of low-value assets recognitlon exemptlon to
leases that are considergd to be low value. Lease payments on short-term |leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.,

Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor |s classifled as finance or operating |ease. Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards Incldental to awnership of an asset are classified as operating leases, Rental Income arlsing is accounted for on a stralght-
line basis aver the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred In negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental Income, Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the perlod
in which they are earned.

Government Grants

Government Grants are recognized at thelr falr value when there Is reasonable assurance that the grant will be recelved and all the attached
condltions wlll be complled with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, |t is recognized as income on a systematic basls over the perlads that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed, Government grant related to the non-monetary asset are recognised at nominal value and presented by
deducting the same from carrying amount of related asset and the grant is then recognised in profit of loss over the useful life of the depreciable
asset by way of a reduced depreclation charge.

Segment reporting :

Operating segments are reported In a manner conslstent with the Internal reporting provided to the chief eperating decislon maker. The Board of
directors monitors the operating results of all product segments separately for the purpose of making declsions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance Is evaluated based on proflt and less and |s measured consistently with profit and loss In the
financial statements.

The operating segments have been Identlfied on the basls of the nature of products/services. Further:
1 Segiment revenue Includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment Including Inter - segment
2 Expenses that are dirgctly Identifiable with / allocable to segments are consldered for determining the segment result. Expenses
which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are Included vnder unallocable expend|ture.

3 Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments Is included in unallocable Income.
4 Segment results includes margins on Inter-segment sales which are reduced in arriving at the profit before tax of the Company.

S5 Segment assets and llabllitles include those directly identifiable with the respectlve segments. Unallocable assets and liabllities
represent the assets and llabllitles that relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

6 Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other business segments is accounted on the basis of transfer price agreed
between the segments. Such transfer prices are elther determined to yleld a desired margin or agreed on a negotlated business.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the welghted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for events such as bonus Issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consol|dation of shares) that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources,

For the purpose of calculating dlluted earnings per share, the net proflt or loss for the period attributable to equlty shareholders and the welghted
average number of shares outstanding durlng the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentlally dllutive equity shares.

Borrowing Costs

BorrowIng cost Includes Interest and other costs Incurred In connection with the borrowIng of funds and charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on
the basls of effective Interest rate (EIR) method. BorrowIng cost also Includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized as
expense in the perlod in which they occur,

Exceptional Items

Exceptional Items are transactions which due to thelr size or incidence are separately disclosed to enable a full understanding of the Company's
financial performance. Items which may be considered exceptional are significant restructuring charges, gains or losses on disposal of
Investments In subsidiarles, associates and jolnt venture and Impalrment losses/ write down In value of Investment in subsldiaries, associates and
Joint venture and significant disposal of fixed assets etc.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equlvalent In the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, that are readlly convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value.

For the purpose of presentation In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equlvalents Includes cash on hand, deposit held at call with financlal
Institutions, other short - term, highly liquld Investments with original maturitles of three months or less that are readlly convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes In value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings In current llabllitles in the balance sheet.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items Included In the financlal statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment In which the entlty operates
('the functlonal currency'). The Company’s financlal statements are presented In Indlan rupee (INR) which Is also the Company’s functional and
presentation currency,

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactlons are translated Into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transaction and from the translation of monetary assets and llabilities
denominated In forelgn currencles at year end exchange rate are generally recognised In the statement of proflt and loss.

Non-monetary Items that are measured In terms of historical cost In a forelgn currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
Initial transactlons. Non-monetary items measured at falr value In a forelgn currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
falr value is determined,

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of maonetary items are recognized as Income or expense In the perlod In which they arlse
with the exception of exchange differences on gain ar loss arising on translatlon of non-monetary items measured at fair value which is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change In falr value of the item (l.e., translation dlifferences on items whose falr value gain or
loss Is recognized in OCI or proflt or loss are also recognized In OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Provisions and Contingent Liébilities
Provisions

A provislon is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructlve) as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outfiow of resources embodying economlic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a rellable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the effect of the time
value of money Is materlal, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liablMty.
When discounting s used, the Increase In the provision due to the passage of time Is recognized as a finance cost.

Sales Return

Provisions for sales returns is determined based on the historical percentage of sales return for the same types of goods for which the provision Is
currently being determined. The same percentage to the sales is applied for the current accounting period to derive the provision for sales return
to be accrued. It is very unlikely that actual sales return will exactly match the historical percentage, so such estimates are reviewed annually for
any materlal changes in assumptions and likellhood of occurrence.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent |iabllity Is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence wlil be conflrmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertaln future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that Is not recognized because It Is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the abligatlon. A contingent liability also arlses In extremely rare cases, where there Is a
llabiiity that cannot be recognlzed because It cannot be measured rellably. the Company does not recognize a contingent liabillty but discloses its
existence in the financlal statements unless the probabllity of outflow of resources is remote.

Provislons, contingent llabillties, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Dividend Distributions

The Company recognizes a llabllity to make the payment of dividend to owners of equity, when the distribution is authorised and the distribution
Is no longer at the discretlon of the Company. As per the corporate laws In Indla, a distribution Is authorised when It is approved by the
shareholders, A corresponding amount Is recognised directly in equlty.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financlal instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presurmption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

(1) In the principal market for asset or liability, or
(I In the absence of a princlpal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liablllty.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accesslble by the Company.
The falr value of an asset or llabllity Is measured using the assumptlons that market participants would use when pricing the asset or llabllity,
assuming that market particlpants act In thelr economlc best Interest,

A falr value measurement of a non- financlal asset takes Into account a market participant's abllity to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in Its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset In Its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technlques that are appropriate In the clrcumstances and for which sufficlent data are avallable to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable Inputs.




2.26
(i

~

(ii)

a)

b)

9

d)

e)

f)

2.27

()

(i)

(iii)

Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

All assets and llabllitles for which falr value Is measured or disclosed In the financlal statements are categorized wlithin the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that Is significant to the falr value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted(unadjusted) market prices In actlve markets for Identical assets or llabllitles
Level 2- Valuation technlques for which the lowest level Input that Is significant to the falr value measurement |s directly or Indlrectly
Level 3- Valuation technlgues for which the lowest level Input that Is significant to the falr value measurement is unobservable

For assets and llabllitles that are recognized In the flnanclal statements on a recurring basls, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels In the hlerarchy by re-assessing categorization ( based on the lowest level Input that Is signlificant to fair value
measurement as a whole ) at the end of each reporting perlod.

For the purpose of falr vatue disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and llabllitles on the basls of the nature, characterlistics
and risks of the asset or llabllity and the level of the fair value hlerarchy as explalned above,

Business Combinations

Buslness combinatlons are accounted for using the acqulsition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
conslderation transferred measured "at acqulsltion date falr value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acqulree. For each
business comblinatlon, the Company elects whether to measure the non-controlling Interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identlflable net assets. Acqulsltion-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identiflable assets acquired, and the liabllities assumed are recognised at their acqulsltlon date fair values. For this
purpose, the liabllities assumed Include contingent liabllitles representing present obligation and they are measured at thelr acquisition falr values
Irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits Is not probable.

Business Comblnatlons Involving entitles or businesses in which all the combining entlties or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same
party or partles both before and after the business combination, and where that control is not transitory Is accounted using the pooling of Interests
method as enumerated below:

The assets and llabllities offthe comblining entlties are reflected at their carrying amounts.
No adjustments are made to reflect falr values, or recognlse any new assets or llabllities. The only adjustments that are made are to harmonise
accounting pollicles.

The flnanclal Informatlon In the flnancial statements In respect of prlor perlods should be restated as if the business combination had occurred
from the beglnning of the preceding perlod in the financlal statements, Irrespective of the actual date of the comblination. However, If business
comblnation had occurred after that date, the prior perlod Information shall be restated only from that date.

The balance of the retalned earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with corresponding balance appearing in
the financlal statements of the transferee or Is adjusted agalnst revenue reserve.

The identity of the reserves shall be preserved and shall appear In the financlal statements of the transferee In the same form In which they
appeared in the flnancial statements of the transferor.

The difference, If any, between the amounts recorded as share capltal issued plus any addltlonal conslderation in the form of cash or other assets
and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to revenue reserves.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards

The Company applled Ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of this new accounting
standard Is described below. Several other amendments apply for the first time for the year ending March 31, 2020, but do not have an impact on
the standalone financlal statements of the Company.

Ind AS 116 Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and bulldings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease,
at inceptlon of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an Identified asset for a perlod of
time in exchange for consideratlon. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an Identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract Involves the use of an Identifled asset (li) the Company has substantlally all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding lease llability for all lease
arrangements In which It Is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Refer note 44 for detailed Impact on adoptlon of Ind AS 116 Leases on the financlal statements of the Company.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The appendix addresses the accounting for Income taxes when tax treatments Involve uncertalnty that affects the application of Ind AS 12 and
does not apply to taxes or levies outslde the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does It specifically Include requirements relating to Interest and penaltles
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically addresses the following:

1. Whether an entlty conslders uncertain tax treatments separately

2. The assumptlons an entity makes about the examlination of tax treatments by taxation authorlties

3. How an entlty determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates

4. How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Company has to determine whether to consider each uncertaln tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax
treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resolutlon of the uncertalnty. In determining the approach that better predicts the
resolution of the uncertalnty, the Company has consldered, for example, (a) how It prepares its income tax filings and supports tax treatments; or
(b) how the entity expects the taxatlon authority to make its examination and resolve issues that might arlse from that examination.

The Company determined, based on Its tax compllance, that it Is probable that Its tax treatments will be accepted by the taxatlon authorities, The
Appendix dld not have an Impact on the standalone flnancial statements of the Company.

Amendments to Ind AS 109: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under Ind AS 109, a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive Income, provided that the
contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding’ (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument
is held within the approprlate business model for that classification. The amendments to Ind AS 109 clarlfy that a financial asset passes the SPPI
criterion regardless of the event or circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and Irrespectlve of which party pays or recelves
reasonable compensatlon for the early termination of the contract. e

These amendments have no Impact on the standalone financlal statements of the Company.
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Amendments to Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtallment or settlement occurs during a reporting perlod. The
amendments speclfy that when a plan amendment, curtaliment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting perlod, an entlty Is required to:
(a) Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, using the actuarlal
assumptlons used to remeasure the net deflned benefit llabllity (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that
event.

(b) Determine net Interest for the remalnder of the perlod after the plan amendment, curtallment or settlement using: the net defined beneflt
llabllity (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate used to remeasure that
net deflned benefit liability (asset).

The amendments had no Impact on the standalone financlal statements of the Company as It did not have any plan amendments, curtallments, or
settlements during the perlod.

Amendments to Ind AS 28: Long-term interests In associates and jolnt ventures

The amendments clarify that an entlty applles Ind AS 109 to long-term Interests In an assoclate or joint venture to which the equlty method Is not
applied but that, In substance, form part of the net investment In the associate or joint venture (long-term Interests). This clarification Is relevant
because It Implles that the expected credIt loss model in Ind AS 109 applles to such long-term Interests.

The amendments also clarlifled that, In applylng Ind AS 109, an entity does not take account of any losses of the associate or joInt venture, or any
impairment losses on the net investment, recognised as adjustments to the net investment In the assoclate or jolnt venture that arise from
applying Ind AS 28 Investments In Assoclates and Jolnt

Ventures.

These amendments had no Impact on the standalone financlal statements.

Annual Improvements to Ind AS 2018

Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

The amendments clarlfy that, when an entity obtalns control of a business that Is a joint operation, it applles the requirements for a business
comblinatlon achleved In stages, Including remeasuring previously held interests In the assets and liabllitles of the joInt operation at falr value. In
doing so, the acquirer remeasures Its entlre previously held Interest in the jolnt operation, An entity applies those amendments to business
combinatlons for which the acquislition date Is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 April 2019,

These amendments had no Impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company as there is no transaction where joint control is
obtalned.

Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements

An entity that participates In, but does not have joInt control of, a jolnt operation might obtaln joInt control of the joInt operation In which the
activity of the joInt operation constitutes a business as defined In Ind AS 103. The amendments clarify that the previously held interests In that
Joint operation are not remeasured. An entlty applles those amendments to transactions In which It obtalns jolnt control on or after the beginning
of the flrst annual reporting perlod beginning on or after 1 Aprll 2019.

These amendments had no Impact on the standalone financlal statements of the company as there Is no transactlon where a jolnt control Is
obtained.

Ind AS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarlfy that the Income tax consequences of dividends are {inked more directly to past transactions or events that generated
distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entlty recognises the Income tax consequences of dividends In profit or [oss,
other comprehensive income or equity according to where It orlginally recognised those past transactions or events.

An entity applies the amendments for annual reporting perlods beginning on or after 1 Aprll 2019. Since the Company's current practice Is In line
with these amendments, they had no Impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company. .

Ind AS 23 Borrowling Costs

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a quallfying asset when
substantially ali of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete. The entity applies the amendments to
borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period In which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity
applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Since the Company's current practice is in line with
these amendments, they had no Impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the standalone financlal statements requlres the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabllities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent llabilities.
Uncertainty about these judgements, assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a materlal adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset or llabllity affected In future perlods.

Judgments

In the process of applylng the Company’s accounting policles, management has made the following judgments, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized In the financial statements.

Leases

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any perlods covered by an optlon to extend the
lease If It Is reasonably certain to be exerclsed, or any perlods covered by an optlon to termlnate the lease, If It Is reasonably certaln not to be
exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that Include extension and termination optlons. The Company applles judgement In evaluating whether
it Is reasonably certain whether or not to exerclse the optlon to renew or terminate the lease. That Is, It conslders all relevant factors that create
an economlic incentive for It to exerclse either the renewal or terminatlon. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term
If there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within Its control and affects Its ablllty to exercise or not to exercise the option to
renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or slgnificant customisation to the leased asset).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a signlificant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts of assets and liabilities within the next flnancial year, are described below. The Company
based Its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone financlal statements were prepared. Existing clrcumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or clrcumstances arising beyond the cohtinl-of the
Company. Such changes are reflected In the assumptlons when theay occur, A f
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Taxes

Uncertaintles exlst with respect to the Interpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable Income.
Glven the wide range of business relatlonships differences arlsing between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptlons, could necessltate future adjustments to tax Income and expense alteady recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on
reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions Is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing
Interpretations of tax regulatlons by the taxable entlty and the responsible tax authority.

Gratuity benefit

The cost of defined beneflt plans (l.e. Gratulty benefit) Is determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation [nvelves making varlous
assumptlons which may differ from actual developments In the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
Increases, mortallty rates and future pension Increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-tarm
nature, a defined beneflt obllgation Is highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions. All assuriptions are reviewed at each reporting date, In
determining the appropriate discount rate, management conslders the Interest rates of long term government bonds with extrapolated maturity
corresponding to the expected duratlon of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate Is based on publicly avallable mortality tables for
India. Future salary Increases and pension Increases are based on expected future Inflation rates for India. Further detalls about the assumptlons
used, Including a sensltivity analysis, are given in Note 37.

Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the falr value of financial assets and financlal ||abllities recorded In the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices In active
markets, thelr fair value is measured using valuatlon techniques Including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The Inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possibie, but where this Is not feasible, a degree of judgment Is required In establishing falr values.
Judgments Include conslderatlons of inputs such as llquldity risk, credIt risk and volatlilty. Changes In assumptlons about these factors could affect
the reported falr value of financlal Instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the Company uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the Inputs to the Impairment calculatlon, based on Company's past history ,exIsting market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an Indlcatlon that an asset may be Impalred. If any Indication exlIsts, or when
annual Impalrment testing for an asset Is requlred, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's CGU'S falr volue less cost of disposal and I vdlue I use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds Its
recoverable amount, the asset Is consldered Impaired and Is written down to Its recoverable amount.

In assessing value |n use , the estimated future cash flows are estimated based on past rend and discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks speclific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken inte account. If no such transactions can be Identlfied, an appropriate valuation model
is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.

Provislon for sales return

Provisions for sales returns is determined based on the historical percentage of sales return for the same types of goods for which the provision Is
currently being determined, The same percentage to the saies is applied for the current accounting period to derive the provision for sales return
to be accrued. It Is very unlikely that actual sales return will axactly match the historical percentage, so such estimates are reviewed annualily for
any material changes In assumptions and likellhood of occurrence.

Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of trade recelvables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade recelvables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (l.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credlt and other forms of credit Insurance). The provislon matrix Is initlally based on the Company's historical observed
default rates. The Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At every
reporting date, the historlcal observed default rates are updated and changes In the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic condltlons and ECLs Is a significant estimate. The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes In clrcumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's actual default In the future. The Informatlon about the ECLs on the
Company’s trade receivables and contract assets |s disclosed In Note 20.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment represent significant portion of the asset base of the Company charge in respect of periodic depreclation Is derlved
after determining an estimate of assets expected useful life and expected value at the end of Its useful life, The useful life and residual value of
Company's assets are determined by Management at the time asset |5 acquired and reviewed periodically Including at the end of each year. The
useful life Is based on historical experlence with similar assets, in anticipation of future events, which may have |mpact on their life such as
change in technology.

Standards issued but not effective
There are no standards that are Issued but not yet effective on March 31, 2020.




o v
> JAW
“bb 0N 1843y °,585297, 91T SV pul 40 Uoidope 4o JUNEIE U NBSSE 951 JO Y6, 01 PaYISSERL LBBq sBy | soe| 82°ZS WUNI :uonenaidap umuu_?.._h._mnmxv.: - \.»\Wma.\mu.wu\u NI 14909 S5019) SOl 0T 166 UNI JO PUB| PjOYyasea] Jo ¥d0|q 32U YL °§
SETIVE?;
“PE 210U w1 papiacid uag sey LBl J.‘Vwﬁaﬂﬂ_q *Axradoud Jo uonisinboe 8y 40j QUALNIWWOI [BNIIB1UCD Jo 3NS0[ISId b

"9340 peay mau Bulpnisul sjue|d SNOLIEA 3B UORDNIISLOS J3PUN SIBSSE SBPNIAUL 0Z0T ‘TE YoIBl 38 Se ss91604d U] Jiom |eyded g

"S€ 10N 995 S|1e19p 104 “ssaIBoud Ut ylom jeqideduswdinbs puz ued ‘Aadosd o3 sUCHIPPE Ul papRBUY S| 2EBA 341 BULINP pa.1IN3U| A31ANDR JUBWHO|BABP PU 1R3SEI 03 UOREISL U) 31n3|pUsdxs [eyded -7

*yauaq siy) 4o (SOE| 19'9=¢ UNI : 6102 ‘1€ Yodel e se) soel TZ°v99 YNI 2PNI2Ul 0Z0Z ‘TE Y2Jep je se ssaiboud-ui-yaom [e3iden yo aouejeq Buiso)yjuswdinba pue
uetd Jo wodwit uo BuBYIS (93d3) SPOOS [eilded uokowOd LodxT Japun pajiEAe UBUSG AInp 243 J0 W0y U3 Ul 3JURYSISSE JUBLLLISAGE 3O JUNOIIR 1O i$2] s9'EHT UNI : 6107 ‘1€ UuBW) s38f 02°£6Z WNI S3pN|oU Jusdinba pue jueld 03 SUOHIPPE ‘0Z0Z “TE YoJel PApUS Jeak 8y buLng T

: 330N
I8°Z6E'YT €0°SEL'T6 2579¢ [4%:743 S0°€80°T SY'bSS 8Z°096°T 99°885°Z £6 19T°LE 6v°L¥8°0E T6°29€ - 8S°SEL'ST 0Z0Z Y>IeW 1€ e se aduejeg
ST'¥00°TT S5'ST1Z'9L = > 60°2Z0°'T S0°ST9 EVIEE'T LOTEET 0L 8TH 62 0T ISY'bT E€E'6TE 01166 8S°SEL'ST 6T0Z Yo1BW TE e Se aduejeg
:anjea bulAues JoN
E €5°5£2’ST 06°ES 8621 LE06L 267655 <9°809 9L Tre'T BT 09L8 ES'SB8ET LTTET 5 = 0Z0Z Y12l T€ e se aduejeg
(bt 230N Joja1) ,So5B97, 9TT
= (82°£8) - = = 3 - L = (82'£8) o SV PuI Jo Uodope jo Juncdde Ue payIsselay
= (8e°162) — = (eg70) (6v'9) {69°2¢2) = 1LETIR) - = - syuauisnipe /sjesodsiqg
ol 87'88E'S 06'e8 867ZT 26°€ZE ET°68T 9L eee £LB'98E TOZET'E 10°4L8 09°80T = - abseyd uonerdasdeg
= T6°SEZ'0T = S §TZ5% 8T ZLE S5°ZZS 68¥SS’T vS60L'S ZS80S'T L9°€ET 82°LS 3 6T0Z Y21BW TE 3 Se aduejeg
(16798) - - [€359)] (86'9) (£9°5) (267 T) VZ87TL) {o¥0] = S = siuaunsnfpe /s|esodsig
TLYES'E - - S€°002 LE0ST 98'¥CT [4 gra-r4 TSBIT'C £0°€€S L9°€T 64702 - Sbiey> uonepasdsg
= 118849 - - 507252 6L7EET 99°8EE 6EVLZ'T ¥B8T99°E 68'SL6 - 6v°9€ - 8T0Z JUdY T0 je se aduejeg
:uonedasdap pajejnwnaoy
I8°26EVT 95°0T0°Z0T Yo 0T°T66 ZV'EL8T LEVIT'T 06'895°¢C TV O0ES'Y ST 220’9 COEEZ EE 8T°56% = 8SSEL'ST 0Z0T Ya4eW € 38 Se aduejeg
(sZ°0T8°€T) (00°sZ%) - = (08"0) (ve L) (8e'9£7) (Z¥'1) (90°541) i - = - sjuaunsnipe /sjesodsiq
16'86T°L T9'$08°0Z 5§9°60C S8°v8¢ 8¥ 62T 0£°9e6 88°5¥9 £6'Z20°TT 0E°€L2°L 8TCST = suonIppy
{vp 310N 19431} ,sas027, OTT SY pul
= LL9gZ LL79€T = = - = - - = - - Jo uondope jo Junodde uo jedw) uoRIsuesj
(p¥ 210N 49424) 525831, 9TT
- (82°L5) - 0T° 166 - - - - - - - (8€°840°T) S¥ puI 4o UodOPE JO JUNDDOR UD PaYISSE[dRY
ST ¥00'1C 5P IsH 98 = = ZE681V'T €2°266 86°998’T 96'S88'E ¥THLI'SE 2L656'5C 00°EVE SESP0'T 8S°SEL'ST 610 Y212l 1€ 1 Se aduejeg
(€5°9€Z'TT) TErset) - . {s€0) (1s'8) [€2433] {av01) ($473€T) - - - {€579) sjusuysnipe /sjesodsig
- 62°S£2'8T - & 89'164 ST°Z0E ¥S'6L7 19°28L'T 9'SSPeT vL°SL2°2T 0D'EVE - - suonippy
89°0vZ'ZE 0Z'T0¥'85 - = £0'869 65°€69 IT'ETIT £8°ETT’T £0'808°2¢ 86'€89°ET - 8€°810°'T T1ZhL'ST 8102 Y T ie Se aduejeg
ianjea buiAued ssoin
Buipnng puE] pjoyasea
ssaisboad sjosse s1asse Juawdinba SaJnyxiyy pue Asujyoew syuswaacidun puej| pue|
ul spop [exiden 12301 asn Jo Jy6ry s Jo Y61y sta3ndwo) 210 SIPRaA 3inywing pue jue|d 1Py 1 Y Ploya3.4
TL6TZ°26 ¥8°ZTT'90T
ST°$00'T2 T8°26€ VT $591601d U) yiom [e3ided
SreTar —— o
95°STC'9Z EO0'SELTE
- z5'zoe
- 21846 pue| pjoyases
iSI19SSe ISN Jo Y6y
60°220°'T SO'ERO'T sioIndwio)
50°s19 SY'¥SS juawidinba saty0
EY'TEET 92°096'T SIPIYIA
£L0°TEE'Z 99'885°2 $91MIXY pue BunyIuIng
0£°8IH'62 £6°192°LE Adsujysew pue jueld
0T T56'4T 6b°L¥8'0DE 6ulpjing
EE6TE 16°29€ SiuswaAoidwy ployasea]
0T'T66 = pue| ployases
85°SEL'ST 85'SEL'ST

6TOZ YaJeW 1€
e sy

0Z0Z WIeW 1€
e sy

pue| pjoyasiy
1S39s5€E UMQO
:jo sjunowe GulALe)

juawdnba pue jued ‘Aysadorg ¢

PRITIE SSIMIBLI0 S58|Un 598 UNT W1 S4e SIUNoLLE |1y
1ElS |er: 1} 1ep 33 jo Hed Bujuwiioy sayonN
Pa3WIT BULIRYL pupjuel

0ZOT Y2IeW TE PSpUD JRBA 3Y3 10)




Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2020
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4 Investment properties

Non-Current
Carrying amounts of:

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Freehold land 378.66 378.66
Building 172.59 660.44
551.25 1,039.10
Freehold land Building Total
Gross carrying value :
Balance as at 01 April 2018 442.91 723.46 1,166.37
Additions - 4 i
Disposals/ adjustments (64.25) (28.25) (92.50)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 378.66 695.21 1,073.87
Additions _ :
Disposals/ adjustments - (522.62) (522.62)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 378.66 172.59 551.25
Accumulated depreciation :
Balance as at 01 April 2018 - 26.06 26.06
Depreciation charge - 8.71 8.71
Balance as at 31 March 2019 - 34.77 34.77
Depreciation charge - 0.73 0.73
Disposals/ adjustments (35.50) (35.50)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - - -
Net carrying value ;
Balance as at 31 March 2019 378.66 660.44 1,039.10
Balance as at 31 March 2020 378.66 172.59 551.25

Information regarding income & expenditure of investment property

For the year
31 March 2020

For the year
31 March 2019

a) Rental Income from investment properties (refer note 26) 17.92 39.18
b) Less : Direct operating expenses - generating rental income - (5.21)
c) Less: Depreciation charge (0.73) (8.71)
d) Profit arising on the same 17.19 25.26
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
e) Fair value of investment property 589.45 612.58

Note :

Investment property represents, land and building under construction at Distt - Tehri Garhwal. The said premise is given on lease.

The above fair valuation are based on valuations performed by an accredited independent valuer, who is specialised in valuing such type of investment property.

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property and no contractual obligation to purchase, construct or develop or for repair &
maintenance,

Description of Valuation Technique used:

The Company obtains Independent Valuations of Its investment properties as at the year end, The falr value of the investment properties have been derived using
the Direct Comparison Method. The direct comparison approach involves a comparison of the investment properties to similar properties that have actually been
sold In arms-length distance from investment properties or are offerad for sale in the same reglon. This approach demonstrates what buyers have historically
been willing to pay (and sellers willing to accept) for similar properties in an open and competitive market, and is particularly useful in estimating the value of the
land and properties that are typically traded on a unit basis. This approach leads to a reasonable estimation of the prevailing price. Given that the comparable
instances are located in close proximity to the investment properties; these instances have been assessed for their locational comparative advantages and
disadvantages while arriving at the indicative price assessment for investment properties.

The fair value of investment property has been determined by Akhil Kumar and Associates, Government approved valuer. The main inputs used are the rental
growth rates, expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates based on comparable transactions and industry data. All resulting fair value estimates
for investment property are included in level 3.

Sensitivity analysis of the investment property fair value assumptions

Further the Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used by the valuer and ensured that the valuation of investment property is
appropriate.
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As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
5 Intangible assets
Carrying amounts of ;
Computer software 335.39 366.13
Other Intanglible assets 1,854.65 170.26
2,190.04 536.39
Computer Other intangible Intangible assets
Total
software assets under development
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 01 April 2018 1,230.23 435.19 1,665.42 -
Additlons 189.38 - 189.38 107.06
Disposals - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 1,419.61 435.19 1,854.80 107.06
Addltlons 243.73 2,241.58 2,485.31 262.40
Disposals (208.70) - (209.70) -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,453.64 2,676.77 4,130.41 369.46
Accumulated amortisation:
Balance as at 01 April 2018 816.59 206.02 1,022.61 -
Amortisatlon charge 236.89 58.91 295.80 -
Disposals - - = -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 1,053.48 264.93 1,318.41 -
Amortlsation charge 230.42 557.19 787.61 -
Disposals (165.65) - (165.65) -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,118.25 822.12 1,940.37 -
Net carrying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2019 366.13 170.26 536.39 107.06
Balance as at 31 March 2020 335.39 1,854.65 2,190.04 369.46

Note:
Other Intangible assets Includes a rights available with the Company to market licensed medicines in designated territory as per
arrangements with respective customers. These are amortised as per the terms of the contract.
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6 Investment In subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

“Face Value

Units/ shares Amount Units/ shares Amount
_per share
Non- Current ==
(a) Investment in unquoted equity instruments - at cost, Fully
paid up
Subsidiaries
Shree Jee Laboratory Private Limited INR 10 140,498,730 14,541.05 131,248,730 13,616.05
Lifestar Pharma Private Limited INR 10 42,500 4.25 42,500 4,25
Magnet Labs Private Limlted INR 10 36,800 348.75 36,800 348.75
Lifestar Pharma LLC (see note "a" below) - 90,000 12,517.27 90,000 11,816.77
Mankind Pharma Pte Limited SGD 1 41,000 19.78 41,000 19.78
MedIpack Innovations Private Limited INR 100 306,000 306.00 306,000 306.00
Broadway Hospitality Services Private Limited INR 10 50,000 551.38 50,000 551.38
Pavi Buildwell Private Limited INR 100 1,000 1.00 1,000 1.00
Prolijune Lifesciences Private Limited INR 10 100,000 17.53 100,000 17.53
Jaspack Industries Private Limlted INR 10 9,010,000 901.00 9,010,000 901.00
Mahananda Spa and Resorts Private Limited INR 10 21,656,000 4,747.11 21,656,000 4,747.11
Less : Provislon for the dimInution in the value of Investment (2,076.60) 2,670.51
Appian Properties Private Limited INR 10 10,000,000 1,000.00 10,000,000 1,000.00
Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limlted INR 100 18,900 11,321.10 18,900 11,321.10
Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited INR 100 60,480 19,247.16 60,480 19,247.16
Mediforce Healthcare Private Limited TNR 10 718,000 5,779.90 718,000 5,779.90
JPR Labs Private Limited INR 10 8,275,999 962.65 9,275,999 962.65
Lifestar Pharmaceuticals (see note "g" below) - - = =
(b) Investment in unquoted equity instruments - at cost, fully
paid up
Associates
ANM Pharma Private Limited INR 10 785,606 78.56 785,606 78.56
Sirmour Remedies Private Limited INR 100 40,000 4,383.20 40,000 4,383.20
Less : Provision for the diminution in the value of Investment (2,500.00) 1883.20
(c) Investment in preference shares (unquoted) - at cost
Subsidiaries
Jaspack Industries Private Limited, 0.10% Optionally Convertible INR 10 147,010,000 14,701.00 132,860,000 13,286.00
Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (see note "b"
below)
Mahananda Resorts & Spa Pvt. Ltd. Private Limited, 0.01% INR 10 127,836,135 12,891.35 77,836,135 7,891.35
Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares (see note "c" below)
Prolijune Life Sciences Private Limited, 0.01% Optionally INR 10 391,457 1,864.94 391,457 1,864.94
Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (see
note "d" below)
JPR Labs Private Limited, 0.01% Optionally Convertible Non- INR 10 2,218,860 5,214.32 2,218,860 5,214.32
Curnulative Redeemable Preference Shares (see note "e" below)
Appian Properties Private Limited, 0.01% Optionally Convertible INR 10 184,740,700 18,474.07 184,740,700 18,474.07
Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (see note "f'
below)
Less : Provision for the diminution in the value of Investment 2,450.00) 16,024.07
(d) Investment in partnership firms (see note "h" below)
Subsidiaries
Mankind Speciallties (partnership firm) 538.48 634.80
Less : Provision for the diminution in the value of Investment (201.70) 336.78 (201.70) 433.10
North East Pharma Pack (partnership firm) 592.29 691.44
Joint controllod entities
Superba Buildwell (partnership firm) 1,389.72 1,409.99
Superba Developers (partnership firm) 1,360.29 1,361.32
Superba Buildwell (South) (partnership firm) 2,762.60 2,759.83
Associates
Om Sai Pharma Pack {partnership firm) 2,829.99
Less : Provision for the diminution in the value of Investment (800.00) 2,029.99 2,733.52
(e) Investment in limited liability partnership firms (see note "i" below)
Subsidiaries
Penta Latex LLP 6,909.59 6,418.18
Superba Warehousing LLP 722.80 744,37
Total 138,950.83 138,384.62
As at As at
31 March 2020 __ 31 March 2019
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 138,950.83 138,384.62
Aggregate amount of Impairment In the value of investments 8,028.30 201,70
Notes:
a. The capital contribution In Lifestar Pharma LLC has been contributed solely (i.e. 100%) by Mankind Pharma Limited during the year. In terms of agreement, the non-controlling interest of 10%
Is restricted to profit sharing only subject to complete repayment of 100 % capltal contribution made by Mankind Pharma Limited.
b. The Company has subscribed to Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of INR 10 each carrying coupon of 0.10% per annum issued by its wholly owned

subsidiary i.e. Jaspack Industries Private Limited (‘Jaspack’). Such shares shail be optionally convertible to the equity shares at the option of the shareholders at the end of one year, unless
decided by the Board of Directors of the Jaspack to convert at an early date from the date of allotment, At the time of conversion, every one (1) preference share of face value of INR 10/- each,
will be entltled to one (1) equity share of face value of INR 10/- each of Jaspack. The tenure of Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares will be upto 27 March
2035. The preference shares can be redeemed at face value of INR 10/- per share at any point of time.

c. The Campany hail subseribed to Optianally Corvertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Prafarence Shares (OCNRPS) of INR 10 each carrying coupon of 0.01% per annum issued by Its wholly
awned subsidianies i.e. Mahananda Spa and Resorts Private Limited (*Mahananda’). Such shares shall be optionally convertible to the equity shares either fully or partly at the option of the
fasuer Company at any time during the tenure of OCNRPS |n one or mare tranchas, At the time of conversion, each one (1) OCNRPS of face value of INR 10/- each, will be entitled to one (1)
equlty share of face value of INR 10/- each of Mahananda, or if OCNRPS is redeemed in cash, the redemption will be made at higher of the fair value of shares of Mahananda on the date of
redemption or Issue price of OCNRPS i.e. INR. 10/- for each OCNRPS. The tenure of Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares shall be up to 30 September 2038
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Mankind Pharma Limlted
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All smounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

d. The Company has subscribed to Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (OCNRPS) of face value of INR 10/- with a premlum of INR 466.41/- each carrying
coupon of 0.01% per annum issued by its wholly owned subsidiaries i.e. Prolijune Life science Private Limited ('Prolijune’). Such shares shall be optionally convertible to the equity shares either
fully or partly at the option of the issuer Company at any time during the tenure of OCNRPS in one or more tranches. At the time of conversion, each one (1) OCNRPS of face value of INR 10/-
each, will be entitled to one (1) equlty share of face value of INR 10/~ each of Prolijune, or if OCNRPS is redeemed in cash, the redemption will be made at higher of the falr value of shares of
Prolijune on the date of redemption or Issue price of OCNRPS i.e. INR 476.41 /- for each OCNRPS, The tenure of Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares shall be
up to 30 September 2038,

e, The Company has subscribed te Gptionally Copvertibla Non-Cumulative tedeemablo Preference Shares (OCNRPS] of Faca value of INR 10/- with a premlunt of INR 225/- each carrylng caupan of
0.01% per annum lssusd by Its wholly owned subsldiaries |.e. JPR Labs Private Limited (JPR'). Such shares shall ke aptionally convertible to the equity shares elther fully or partly at the aptien
of the lssuer Company at any tme during the tenure of OCNRES |n one or mere tranches, At tho time of conversion, sach one (1) OCNRPS of face value of INR 10/- each, will be entitied 1o tne
(1) equity share of face value of INR 10/ each of JPR, or I OCHRPS s redeemed in cash, the redemption wlll be made at higher of the falr value of shares of JPR on the date of redemption or
Issue price of OCNRPS l.e. INR 235 /- for each OCNRPS. The tenure of Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares shall be up to 30 September 2038.

f. The Company has subscribed to Optionally Convertible Nan-Cumulative Retdeemable Preference Shares (OCNRPS) of face value of INR 10/- each carrying coupon of 0.01% per annum issued by
its whally owned subsidiaries i.e. Appian Propurties Privata Limlted ["Appian’). Such shares shall be optionally convertible to the equlty shares either fully or partly at the option of the issuer
Compdny at #ny time during the tenure of DENIPS in pre or more tranches. At the time of conversion, each one (1) OCNRPS of face value of INR 10/- each, will be entltled to one (1) equity
share of face value of INR 10/- each of JPR, or if OCNRPS is redeemed in cash, the redemption will be made at higher of the falr value of shares of Appian on the date of redemption or Issue
price of OCNRPS j.e. INR 10 /- for each OCNRPS, The tenure of Optionalty Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares shall be up to 30 September 2038.

Q. The Company has been incorporated during the year, however no investment has been made till the year ended March 31, 2020

h. Investment in partnership firms are measured at equity method, and are shown as net of contribution, drawings and share of profit/ loss for the respectlve year, See note 40.

i Following are the details of investments In partnership firms disclosing their capital and share of profit/ (loss) as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.

Partnership Firm Partners Capital Share of profit Capital Share of profit
March 31, March 31, 2019
Mankind Speclalities {partnership firm) Mankind Pharma Limited 370.00 BB.00% 466,55 98.00%
Nikunj Tyagi (6.30) 2.00% {4.33) 2.00%
363,70 100.00% 462,22 100,00%
North East Pharma Pack (partnership firm) Mankind Pharma Limited 592.24 57.50% 691,39 57.50%
JLD Builders and Developers Pvt. Ltd. 17.50 12.50% 39.05 12.50%
Gaurav Dewan 18.75 7.50% 40.06 7.50%
Rahul Dewan 22.25 7.50% 40.06 7.50%
Amit Gera 33.75 7.50% 40.06 7.50%
Bodh Raj Sikri 33.76 7.50% 40.06 7.50%
718.25 100.00% B90.68 100.06%
Superha Ruildwell Rajeev Juneja 90.90 3,30% 93.06 3.30%
Sheetal Arora 77.12 2.80% 78.96 2,80%
Neeraj Garg 275.44 10,00% 282.01 10.00%,
Rakesh Gupta 275.44 10.00% 282.01 10,005
Deepali Garg 275.44 10.00% 282.01 10.00%,
Rashi Singhal 70.22 5.00% 73.50 S5.00%
Shagun Singhal Garg 50.22 5.00% 53.50 5.00%
Mankind Pharma Limited 1,377.22 50.00% 1,410.03 50.00%:
Arjun Juneja 107.42 3.90% 109.98 3.90%
2,599.42 100.00% 2,665.05 100.00%|
Superbn Developers Mankind Pharma Limited 1,351.29 60.00% 1,361,32 60.00%
Chirag Garg 214.78 15.00% 230.11 15.008%
Usha Gupta 214.78 15.00% 230.11 15.00%
Rajeev Juneja Khlo) 3.30% 32.08 3.30%
Sheetal Arora 25.67 2.80% 26.13 2,805,
Arjun Juneja 16.12 3.90% 16,77 3.90%
1,854,17 100.00% 1,896,53 100,00%
Superba Buildwell (South) Ajai Agarwal 194.51 10.00% 194,12 10.00%
Mankind Pharma Limited 2,762.60 70.00% 2,759.83 70.00%
Parag Gupta 194,51 10.00% 194.12 10.00%
Uma Gupta 194.51 10.00% 194,12 10,00%
3,346.13 100.00% 3,342,109 100.00%
Om Sai Pharma Pack Arun Kumar Vasishtha 237.33 10.00% 189.47 10.00%
Siddharth Vasishtha 233.23 10.00% 185.37 10.00%
Deepak Mehendiratta 381.28 10.00% 333.42 10.00%
Dhruv Mehendiratta 87.12 10.00% 39.26 10,00%,
Anshul Sikri 345.82 14,00% 278.82 14.00%,
Pochiraju Venkata Padmaja 139,76 6.00% 111.04 6,00%
Esha Arora Tiwari 1,347.98 20.00% 1,252.26 20,00%
Mankind Pharma Limited 2,828.51 20.00% 2,732.79 20,00%!
5,601.03 100.00% 5,122.44 100.00%:|
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts ari In INR lacs unless otherwise statod

j.
(1)

Impalrment of investments

The Company has performed a detailed analysls to Identlfy Indicators of impairment in respect of its Investment portfolio consldering internal and external factors in accordance with Ind-AS 36 -
Impairment of assets. The Company has allocated Investments wherever indicators exist to its respectlve Cash Genarating Unit L.e. Pharmacaeutical and healthéare products, Real estate and
hospitality and performied Impaitment test ti ascertaln the recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is determined mither based on vilue In use calculation or net selling price, The
discounted cash flews calcul uses o assumptions anel pre tax cash flow projections besed on financed budgets approved by the respective antitles management covering 5 to 8
years perind. Cpsh flow projection beyond 5 years time period are extrapolated using the estimatad growth rates which is canslstent with forecasts Included in industry reports specific to
industry In which CGU operates,

Management has determined following assumptions for impairment testing of investments in pharmaceuticals sector as stated below.

Assumption Pharmacoutical / packing Approach used in determining value

Weighted average Cost of capital % (WACC) 12.50-14% 1t has been determinei bosis risk fres rate of return adjusted for equlty risk premlum,
before tax (discount rate)

Long Term Growth Rate 4% Long term growth rate has been taken basis financlal budgets and projections
approved by management which is in line with industry growth rate

determinad grogs margin based on past parformance and its ox) ! of market he l4] avarage growth rates used are copsistont with the
forecasts [ncluder In Industry reports, The calculitions performed indicate that there is Impairmant of Invesumunts in soime investments (n roal estite sector, hospitality sector and few pharma
ant pharma packing Investments, Management has perormed a sensitivity analysis with respect to chapges in assumptions for assessment of value-in-use of Investments. Based on this

1alyals, ] b that change In any of above assumption Would not ciuss any material possitle chonge In carrying value of unlt's CGU over and above its recoverable amount,
other than those already accounted as at March 31, 2020,

(i) In respect of investment in real estate and hospltality, management has considered their fair value considering the direct comparable method. The fair value of investments has been

determined by Akhil kumar and Assoclates, Govarnment approved valuer and Colliers Internationsl (India) Properly Services Pvt. Ltd, Tha dirsct comparisan approach |wolves a comparison of
the Investments to simllar proparties that have actually been sold in arms-length distynce from propertles or are offered for sale in the same region. This approach domonstrates whit buyars
hava historically been willing to pay (and sellers willing to atcept) far similar properties in an open and compelitive market, and Is particularly useful in estimating the value of the land and
properties that are typleally traced on a unit basis, This approach leads to o reasonable estimation of the prevalling price. Given that the comparable instances are located in close proximity to
the properties; these instances have been assessed for their locational comparative advantages and disadvantages while arriving at the indicative price assessment for properties. The maln
inputs used are the rental growth rates, expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates based on camparnble transactions and Industry data,

Sensitlvity analysis of assumptions
Further the Company has performed sensltivity analysis on the assumptions used by the valuer and ensured that the valuation is appropriate.

7 Non-Current Investments As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Face Value

Units/ shares Amount Units/ shares Amount
per share

Non- Current

(c) Investmant In unquoted equity instruments measuied at

fair value, fully paid up

Other entitics
Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited INR 10 2,500 0.25 2,500 0.25

Total 0.25 0.25

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments measured at FVTPL 0.25 0.25
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

7 Current Investments

Current

Investment in Mutual Investments (Quoted)

Financial assets carried at falr value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Aditya Birla Sun Life Short Term Fund - Growth - Direct Plan

Adltya Blrla Sun Life Credit Risk Fund - Growth Regular (formerly known as Adltya Birla Sun Life
Aditya Blrla Sun Life Medium Term Plan - Growth-Direct Plan

Aditya Blrla Sun Life Medlum Term Plan - Growth-Regular Plan

Aditya Birla Sun Life Arbitrage Fund - Dlvidend-Dlrect Plan (formerly known as Adltya Birla Sun Life
Enhanced Arbitrage Fund)} - Relnvest

Aditya Birla Sun Life Corporate Bond Fund - Growth-Direct Plan (formerly known as Aditya Birla Sun
Life Short Term Fund)

Aditya Birla Sun Life Floating Rate Fund - Growth-Direct Plan

Aditya Birla Sun Life Short Term Fund - Growth-Regular Plan

Axis Credit RIsk Fund - Regular Growth

Axls Dynamic Bond Fund - Dlrect Plan - Growth Plan

Axis Strateglc Bond Fund - Direct Growth

Axis Arbitrage Fund - Direct Growth

Baroda Credit Risk Fund* - Plan A Growth

DSP Banking and PSU Debt Fund - Reg - Growth

DSP Short Term Fund - Regular Plan - Growth

DSP Short Term Fund - Direct Plan - Growth

DSP Arbitrage Fund - DIr - Monthly Dlvidend - Reinvest

DSP Corporate Bond Fund - Dir - Growth

DSP Low Duration Fund - Direct Plan - Growth (formerly DSP Ultra Short Term Fund)

BOI AXA Short Term Income Fund - Direct Plan - Growth

BHARAT Bond FOF - April 2023 - Direct Plan Growth

HDFC CredIt RIsk Debt Fund - Regular Plan - Growth (formerly HDFC Corporate Debt Opportunities
Fund, erstwhile HDFC Regular Savings Fund merged

HDFC FMP 1148D February 2016 (2) - Regular- Growth - Serles-35

HDFC FMP 1161D February 201G (1) - Regular - Growth - Series-35

HDFC Corporate Bond Fund - Reqular Plan - Growth (formerly HOFC Medium term Opportunities Fund,
HDFC Corpurale Bond Fund - Direct Plan - Grawth Aption (formerly HOFC Madium term Opportunities
Fund, erstwhile HDFC Glit Fund Short Term,HDFC Floating Rate Income Fund - Long Term Plan
merged)

HDFC Credit Risk Debt Fund - Direct - Growth (formerly HDFC Corporate Debt Opportunities Fund,
erstwhile HDFC Regular Savings Fund

HDFC Short Term Debt Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Optlon (formerly HDFC Short Term Opportunities
Fund}

HDFC Arbitrage Fund - Wholesale Plan -Monthly Dividend - Direct Plan - Reinvest

HDFC Banking and PSU Debt Fund - Direct Growth Option

HDFC Charity Fund for Cancer Cure - Debt Plan - Direct Optlon - 50% Dividend Donatlon - Payout

HDFC Short Term Debt Fund - Regular Plan - Growth (formerly HDFC Short Term Opportunitles Fund)

ICICI Prudential Credit RIsk Fund - Growth (formerly ICICI Prudentlal Regular Savings Fund
ICICI Prudential FMP Series 79 1218 Days Plan A - Cumulatlve
ICICI Prudential Bond Fund - Direct Plan - Growth (formerly ICICI Prudential Income Opportunities

Fund)
ICICI Prudential Credit Risk Fund - Direct Plan - Growth (formerly ICICI Prudential Regular Savings

Fund)
ICICI Prudential Medium Term Bond Fund - Growth (formerly ICICI Prudential Corporate Bond Fund)

ICICI Prudential Banking and PSU Debt Fund - Direct Plan - Growth

ICICI Prudentlal Corporate Bond Fund - Direct Plan - Growth (formerly ICICI Prudential Ultra Short
Term Plan)

ICICI Prudential Short Term Fund - Growth Option (formerly ICICI Prudentlal Short Term Plan)

ICICI Prudential Short Term Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option (formerly ICICI Prudential Short Term
Plan)

IDFC Corporate Bond Fund Regular Plan-Growth

IDFC Arbitrage Fund-Monthly Dividend-(Direct Plan) - Reinvest

IDFC Corporate Bond Fund Direct Plan-Growth

IDFC Low Duration Fund-Growth-(Direct Plan)

Invesco India Arbitrage Fund - Direct Plan Dividend - Relnvest

Invesco India Corporate Bond Fund - Direct Plan Growth

Kotak Credit Risk Fund - Growth (Regular Plan) (Erstwhile Kotak Income Opp.)

Kotak Credit Risk Fund - Direct Plan - Growth (Erstwhile Kotak Income Opp.)

Kotak FMP Serles 189 - Growth

Kotak Medium Term Fund DIrect Plan - Growth

Kotak Medium Term Fund - Growth (Reguiar Plan)

Kotak Equity Arbltrage Fund - Direct Plan - Fortnight Dividend - Reinvest

L&T Low Duration Fund - Growth (Formerly L&T Short Term Income Fund - Growth)

L&T Credit Risk Fund Direct Plan - Growth (Formerly L&T Income Opportunities Fund Direct Plan -
Growth)

L&T Resurgent India Bond Fund Growth (Formerly L&T Resurgent India Corporate Bond Fund Growth)

L&T Credit Risk Fund - Growth (Formerly L&T Income Opportunities Fund - Growth)
L&T Short Term Bond Fund - Growth (Formerly L&T Short Term Opportunities Fund - Growth)

L&T Short Term Bond Fund Direct Plan - Growth (Formerly L&T Short Term Opportunitles Fund Direct
Plan - Growth)
L&T Triple Ace Bond Fund Direct Plan - Growth

As at

31 March 2020

As at

31 March 2019

Units Amount Units Amount
(In Nos.) (In lacs) (In Nos.) (In lacs)
- - 759,719.66 243.59
- - 3,355,641.69 458.87
- 509,928.30 121,05
- - 4,121,562.65 939.27
15,556,400.96 1,716.94 - -
1,479,459.16 1,167.06 1,068,196.05 770.87
244,158.91 616.00 - -
722,037.09 239.54 1,349,618.02 417.22
- - 883,439.05 128.55
1,350,785.48 310.01 - -
2,386,221,95 494,77 3,614,587.37 692,39
= 1,318,577.21 187.84
= 4,107,821.78 648,18
~ 2,256,995.10 710.48
- - 1,171,040.33 384.93
32,156,636.28 3,353.94 B -
8,587,775.53 1,016.25 - -
10,317,440.58 1,537.78 s -
- = 3,769,975.84 803.52
11,762,399.53 1,203.54 - -
- - 2,460,951.85 375.42
: - 2,000,000.00 263.35
- B 2,000,000.00 264,51
- - 2,818,411,74 586.53
2,737,301.00 573.07
- = 1,611,211.48 256.48
- - 3,554,191.31 740.37
25,052,670.42 2,626.52 - -
2,914,513.54 490,38 2,914,513,54 444,09
5,000.00 0.50 5,000.00 0.50
551,161.57 124,78 2,300,595.92 474.83
- 1,863,433.05 370,24
- - 2,000,000.00 255.23
- - 2,119,918.02 560.10
1,258,732.46 264,72
2,583,819.12 735.07
3,597,485.47 850.58 3,597,485.47 775.77
4,859,221.05 1,045.22 - 5
1,147,993.59 484.10 2,104,420.83 813.06
4,151,832.54 1,842.01 4,151,832.54 1,675.04
- - 1,971,145.28 250.97
7,646,007.12 1,011.51 -
11,771,038.25 1,643.54 - -
5,333,824.45 1,541.19 -
12,426,891.51 1,722.18 -
50,903.50 1,225.55 - =
- - 8,715,760.04 1,773.05
- - 3,783,109.21 814.78
- 1,001,041.00 133.56
- - 2,274,450.34 363.78
- - 4,612,941.91 705.03
7,366,393.78 1,735.60 - -
- - 3,449,478.75 691.05
= 7,381,160.01 1,603.51
- 2,124,928.82 289.08
1,593,617.03 344.76 15,802,338.52 3,332.65
3,355,055.13 653.54 - -
9,338,044.54 1,880.34 -
2,822,914.64 1,560.13 =




Mankind Pharma LimIited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are In INR lacs unless otherwise stated

7 Current Investments As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current Units Amount Units Amount
(In Nos.) {In lacs) {In Nos.) (In lacs)

Investment in Mutual Investments (Quoted)
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Nippon Indla Credit Risk Fund - Growth Plan Growth Option - - 3,285,626.34 846.98
Nlppon Indla Strateglc Debt Fund - Direct Growth Plan - - 1,579,778.83 242,57
Nippon Indla Strateglc Debt Fund - Growth Plan - - 6,073,209.82 893.38
Nippon Indla Arbitrage Fund - Direct Monthly Dlvidend Plan - Relnvest 18,568,125.28 2,068.62 - -
Nippon Indla Banking & Psu Debt Fund - Direct Growth Plan 2,145,222.14 323.62 - -
Nippon Indla Short Term Fund - Direct Growth Plan Growth Optlon 3,104,391.75 1,227.43 - -
Nippon Indla Strateglc Debt Fund - Segregated Portfollo 1 - Growth Plan 1,527,172.21 0.80 - -
Nlppon India Strateglc Debt Fund - Segregated Portfollo 2 - Growth Plan 1,527,172.21 - - -
SBI CredlIt RIsk Fund Regular Growth (formerly SBI Corporate Bond Fund) - - 1,269,412.29 379.15
SBI Corporate Bond Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 10,903,123.53 1,230.50 - -
SBI Magnum Medlum Duratlon Fund Regular Growth (formerly SBI Regular Savings Fund} 846,152.54 304.93 846,152,54 273.94
UTI Banking & PSU Debt Fund - Direct Growth Plan - - 3,309,439.17 498,56
UTI Credlt Risk Fund - Direct Growth Plan - - 1,692,436.77 304.81
UTI Arbltrage Fund-Direct Growth Plan 2,313,069.24 632.06 - -
UTI Credit Risk Fund - Regular Growth Plan 2,000,253.84 235.40 4,131,329.18 691.03
UTI Credit Risk Fund (Segregated - 13092019) - Regular Growth Plan - Seqregated 1 (G) 4,131,329.18 7.56 - -
UTI Credit Risk Fund (Segregated - 13092019) - Direct Growth Plan - Segregated 1 (G) Direct 1,682,436.71 3.33 = -
UTI Credit Risk Fund (Segregated - 17022020) - Regular Growth Plan - Segregated 2 (G) 2,000,253.37 28.23 = -
UTI Credit Risk Fund (Segregated - D6032020) - Regular Growth Plan - Segregated Portfollo 3 (G) 2,000,253.37 E- = -
UTI Short Term Income Fund - Direct Growth Plan 1,929,868.57 431,58 3,840,334.21 889.99
UTI Short Term Income Fund - Regular Growth Plan 2,237,015.21 483.93 2,237,015.21 503.56
Total 39,416.25 31,416.57
As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Ayyreyate book value of quoted investments 39,416.25 31,416.57
Aggregate market value of quoted Investments 39,416.25 31,41A 57
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
8 Other financial assets (carried at amortised cost)

Non-Current
(Unsecured and consldered good)
Securlty deposlts and earnest money deposits (see note (c) below) 447.47 357.98
Securlty deposlts to related parties (refer note 40) 648.44 648.44
Bank deposits under llen (refer note a and b below) 138.88 142.43

1,234.79 1,148.85
Current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Security and earnest money deposlts 213.27 168.86
Other recelvable - 7.18

213.27 176.04

Notes:

a. Bank deposlts Include deposits of INR 138.88 lacs as at 31 March 2020 and INR 142.43 lacs as at 31 March 2019 are
llen marked with banks Issued to varlous government authorities/ Institutions as margin/ deposits for performance

guarantee.
9 Income tax assets and liabilities As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Income tax assets
Incume Lax recelvable (net of provisinns) 4,638.52 5,749.09
4,638.52 5,749.09

Income tax llabilities
Income tax payable (net of advance tax) 5,657.58 s
5,657.58 - -




Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

10 Other assets

Non-Current

(unsecured and considered good)

Balances with Government authorlties 959,77 419.93

Capltal advances 950.09 758.42

Advances for purchase of Immovable propertles 115,97 1,345.97

Prepald Expenses 56.73 118.33

(unsecured and considered doubtful)

Advances for purchase of Immovable properties 2,642.12 1,429.59

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (2,642.12) (1,429.59)

Capital advances 59.63 40.77

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (59.63) (40.77)

2,082.56 2,642.65

a. During the year, the Company has assessed recoverabliity of advances for purchase of Immovable propertles glven to few
parties. Considering the overall slump in real estate sector and ongoing status of these advances, the Company has created an
allowance for doubtful advances.

Current

(unsecured and considered good)

Prepaid expenses 748.80 606.37
Advances to vendors 2,317.53 1,950.32
Advances to employees 1,427.26 459.50
Advance recelvable from related parties 21.71 1.76
Balances with Government authoritles 14,252.14 8,R78.52

(unsecured and considered doubtful)

Advances to vendors 200.69 -
Advances to employees 201.05 =
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (401.74) “
18,767.74 11,896.47

11 Inventories As at As at

Raw materials and components

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

In hand 7,599.01 7,187.75
In transit 1,178.13 1,141.21
Work-In-progress 2,507.13 2,093.18
Finished goods 11,209.30 7,305.35

Stock In trade
In hand 28,727.47 28,643.52
In transit 1,383.01 1,334.10
Stores and spares 743.62 444,97
53,347.67 48,150.08

Note:

a. The cost of inventorles recognised as an expense includes INR 2,861.00 lacs for the year ended 31 March 2020 and INR
3,523.89 lacs for the year ended 31 March 2019 in respect of write downs of Inventory to net realisable value on account of
expiry and breakage of the Inventories. There has been no reversal of such write downs in current and previous year. These
adjustments were included in cost of material consumed and changes in inventorles. The cost of Inventories recognlsed as an
expense In relation to research and development activity has been shown separately under Note 35.

b. Mode of valuatlon has been stated in note 2.10.
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

12 Assets held for sale

As at As at
Current 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Carrying amounts of:
Freehold land o 270.20 270.20
Bullding = 11,17
270.20 281.37
Note:

The Company has a property at C-51, Rosewood clty, Gurugram which Is held for sale as the Company has entered Into an agreement with the third party
for sale of such property. Investment property Is recognised and measured In accordance with Ind-AS 105 “Non Current Assets Held For Sale and
Discontinued Operations” at lower of Its carrylng amount and falr value less cost to sell. The Company expects to complete the sale by September 30, 2020.

ZARRM

AN
=/ \
| ] =]

W\

The space has been left blank Intentionally



Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalonae financlal statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

All amounts are In INR lacs unloss otherwise statod

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
13 Contract assets
Trade recelvables
Unsecured
Consldered good 38,962.52 12,400.56
Consldered credit Impatred 345.61 270.56
Consldered good - Related Partles (refer note 40) 2,899.51 1,526.30
42,207.64 14,197.42

Less: Allowance against expected credit loss (345.61) (270.56)

41,862.03 13,926.86

a. The average credlt perlod to customers ranges up to 60 - 90 days. No interest is charged on trade recelvables up to the due date from the
date of the Invoice,

b. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credlt loss allowance for trade receivables based on historical credit
loss experlence and adjusted for forward looking Informatlon.

. Recelvables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company’s normal terms and conditlons of business. These terms
and conditions are determined on a case to case basls with reference to the customer’s credit quallty and prevaliing market conditions.
Recelvables that are classifled as 'past due’ in the below table are those that have not been settled within the terms and conditions that have
been agreed with that customer.

d. No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers or private companles In which such director Is a director or member of
the Company elther severally or jointly with any other person apart from those mentioned below.

Enterprises In which relatlves of directors are Interested

As at

31 March 2020

As at

31 March 2019

Next Wave (Indla) 4.73 1.22
Pathkind Dlagnostics Private Limited 4,76 4.69
€. Age of recelvables

WIthin the credit period 13,713.33 12,418.78
1-180 days past due 27,568.18 1,493.75
181-365 days past due 670.93 114,59
More than 365 days past due 255.20 170.30

42,207.64 14,197.42

f,  Movement In allowanca for expacted credit loss:
Balance at the beglnnlng of the year ?270.5A 315,93
Movement for the year /5.05 (45.37)
Balancae at the end of the ycar 345.61 270.56
14 Cash and cash equlvalents As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Balances with banks
- on current account 7,023.61 7.235.70
Cash on hand 10.51 12,21
Cheques on hand 715.66 -

7,749.78 7.247.91

Notes:

a.  There are no restrictlons with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior period.

b.  The deposits maintained by the Company wlith bank comprise of the time deposits, which may be withdrawn by the Company at any point of
time without prior notice and are made for varying period between one day to 12 months depending on the Immediate cash requirements of
the Company to earn interest at the respective short term deposit rates.

15 Other bank balances (carrled at amortised cost) As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current
Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than three months but remaining maturity of 4,578.30 -
less than twelve months (refer note b below)
Fixed deposits with original maturlty of more than twelve months 7,466.72 -

12,045.02 -

Note:

a. Bank deposits Includes Interest accrued and not due on deposit account with banks amounting to INR 280.68 lacs and INR Nil lacs as at 31
March 2020 and as at 31 March 2019 respectively.

b. Short-term deposits are made of varying periods between one date to twelve months depending on the cash requirements of the Company and
earn interest at the respectlve short-term deposits rates.

c. Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months and remaining less than 12 months have been disclosed under other bank

balances.
16 Loans (carrled at amortised cost) As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current
4 ed and idered good)
Loan to related parties (refer note 40) 21,136.40 25,056.42
Loan to employees 51.80 74.44
Loan to others ] 3.07
(credit Impaired) -
Loan to others 187.57 301.97
Loan to related parties (refer note 40} 3,100.00 -
Less: Impairment allowance for credit impaired (3,287.57) (301.97)

21,188.20 25,133,893

Notes:

a.  The loans classlfied as current are repayable on demand.

b, Further Informatlon about these loans is set out in Note 40. These financial assets are carried at amortised cost.

c. During the year, the Company has assessed recoverability of loans given to subsldiaries. Consldering the current financlal position of the
Company, on golng market condition in which the subsidlary operates and wherever required an impairment allowance has been made.
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standal fl tal for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amounts are In INR Incs unless otherwise statad

17

As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Share caplital

Authorised
410,000,000 equlty shares of INR 1 each 4,100.00 4,100.00
(Previous year 410,000,000 equity shares of INR 1 each)

Issued, subscribed and fully pald up

400,588,440 equlty shares of INR 1 each fully pald up 4,005.88 4,005.88
(Previous year 400,588,440 equlty shares of INR 1 each)

4,005.88 4,005.88

Notes:

[0

(n

(1))

(Iv)

Rights, preferences and rostrictions attached to Enuity Sharos

The Comparly has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 1 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entltled to one vote per share. In
the gvent of liquldation of the Company, holder of equity sharos will be entitied to recelve remalning assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of aguity shares hald by the shareholders,

Reconclilation of the number of shares and ding at the begl and at the end of the year:

Issued equlty capital

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 400,588,440 4,005.88 400,588 440 4,005.88

Equlity shares outstanding at the end of the year 400,588,440 4,005.88 400,588,440 4,005.88

Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Numbaors % holding Numbers % holding

Equlty shares

Mr. Ramesh Junefa (as Trustee of Ramesh Juneja Famlly Trust) 83,352,652 20.81% 83,352,652 20.81%
Mr. Rajeev Junaia (as Trustee of Rajeev Junaja Family Trust) 79,930,520 19.95% 79,930,520 19.95%
Mr. Prem Kumar Arora (as Trustee of Pram Shestal Family Trust) 61,755,635 15.42% 61,755,635 15.42%
Sheetal Arora 23,898,836 5.97% 23,898,836 5,97%
Cairnhill Clpef Limited 38,292,240 9.56% 38,292,240 9.56%
Beige Limited 39,850,047 9.95%, 39,858,843 9.95%

227,088,726 BH105% 427,088,726 B81.65%

Shares Issued for conslderatlon other than cash :

The Company has allotted 20,0:2,94,220 fully pald up equity shiares uf INR 1/- each on June U1, 2017 pursuant to 1:1 bonus share Issue approved by the
shareholders In the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on Aprll 20, 2017, by capltalising the amount of INR 2,002,94 lacs of securitles premium of
the Company.
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Mankind Pharma Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

18

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

Other equity

General reserve
Securitles premium
Retalned earnings
Capltal reserve

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

23,774.24 23,774.24
4,211.74 4,211.74
374,713.14 316,049.53
(41,559.70) (41,559.70)
361,139.42 302,475.81
As at As at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 23,774.24 23,774.24
Transferred from retalned earnings . -
Balance at the end of the year 23,774.24 23,774.24

Under the erstwhile Companles Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a
speclfied percentage In accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a
dividend distrlbutlon in a glven year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year, then the total
dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act
2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net proflt to general reserve has been
withdrawn. However, the amount previously transferred to General Reserve can be utilised only in accordance with
provislons of the Companies Act, 2013.

Securities premium

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,211.74 4,211.74
Less : Utllised during the year - -
Ralance at the and of tha year 4,211.74 4,211.74

Securitles premlum is used to record premium on Issue of shares. The reserves can be ulllised vnly Tor imited puepnses in
accordance with provislons of L Cumpanles Act, 2013.

Retained earnings

Balance at the beglnning of the year 316,049.53 267,703.12
Profit for the year 95,822,74 51,403.53
Other comprehensive income (732.53) (164.23)
Dividend on equity shares (refer note 46) (30,244.43) (2,403.53)
Lividend distribution tax (6,182.17) (489.36)
Balance at the end of the year 374,713.14 316,049.53

The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders, is determined based on the
requirements of Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above are not distributable in entirety.

Capital reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year
Increase/(decrease) during the year
Balance at the end of the year

(41,559.70) -
(41,559.70)
(41,559.70)

(41,559.70)

Note:

The negative capital reserve of INR 41,559.70 lacs represents net assets transferred during the year ended March 31, 2019
in respect of the Company’s leasing business to a related party, Mankind Biosys Limlted In accordance with the Scheme of
Demerger approved by the Hon’ble Natlonal Company Law Tribunal on May 25, 2018.
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Mankind Pharma Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

19 Borrowings
Current
(Secured, valued at amortised cost)
Working capltal loan

Note:

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

19,000.00

19,000.00

a) Working capltal loan at the end of previous year was from banks and financial institutions secured by hypothecation of Investment in mutual funds and book debts
and carry Interest rate In the range of 6.75% to 8.75% p.a. The loan has been fully repald durlng the current year.

b) The Company has not defaulted on repayment of loans and Interest durlng the year,

c) Changes In llabllity arlsing from flnancing actlvitles:

Particulars

Opening balances

Additlons

Interest expense

Cash Inflows

Cash Ouflows

Interest paid

Other non-cash adjustments
Closing balances

20 Provisions

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Provislon for gratuity (net) (refer note 36)

Current
Provislon for employee beneflts
Provision for compensated absences

Other provislons
Provislion for expected sales return

Provision for expected sales return

Batance as at the beginning of the year
Addition during the year

Utllised during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Lease liability Borrowings

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

; 5 19,000.00 36,000.00
427.55

23.07 < 205.40 3,626.42

z 2 19,400.00 29,950.00
(81.67) . (38,400.00) (46,950.00)
) - (205.40) (3,626.42)

368.95 = 5 19,000.00
4,641.37 3,242.86
4,641.37 3,242.86

2,529.46 1,069.37

14,393.09 6,663.04

16,922.55

7,732.41

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

6,663.04 3,060.36
15,700.89 12,323.53
(7.970.84) (8,720.85)
14,393.09 6,663.04

Provision for expected sales return: A provision is recognized for expected sales return on products sold by the Company during the year based on the past
experlences of level of return. It Is expected that signlificant level of returns will be incurred in next financial year. Assumptions used to calculate said provision are
based on current sales level and current Informatlion avallable about sales return.
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

21 Deferred tax balances

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net)

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

(8,466.56) (7,582.81)
10,571.51 5,783.23
2,104.95 (1,799.58)

Year ended 31 March 2020 Opening Recognised in Recognised in other Closing balance
Balance Profit or loss comprehensive
Income

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Property, plant and equipment (5,551.09) (2,060.14) = (7,611.23)
Unrealised profit on investments measured (2,031.72) 1,303.07 - (728.65)
at FVTPL
Right of use assets - (126.68) (126.68)

(7,582.81) (883.75) - (8,466.56)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 1,375.10 1,040.42 393.47 2,808.99
Allowance for expected credit loss 94.54 26.23 = 120.77
Provision for expected sales return 2,328.33 2,701.19 5,029.52
Provision for doubtful loans and advances 605.08 (605.08) -
Deferred Government Grant = 440.61 - 440.61
Provision for slow moving inventories 965.89 1,031.48 = 1,997.37
Lease Liability 128.92 - 128.92
Others 414.29 (368.96) - 45.33

5,783.23 4,394.81 393.47 10,571.51
Deferred tax (liabilities)/ assets (net) (1,799.58) 3,511.06 393.47 2,104.95
Year ended 31 March 2019 Opening Recognised in Recognised in other Closing balance
Balance Profit or loss comprehensive
Income

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Property, plant and equipment (3,662.30) (1,888.79) - (5,551.09)
Unrealised profit on investments measured (3,074.91) 1,043.19 (2,031.72)
at FVTPL

(6,737.21) (845.60) - (7,582.81)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 1,457.18 (170.29) 88.21 1,375.10
Property, plant and equipment - . -
Allowance for expected credit loss 136.76 (42.22) - 94.54
Provision for expected sales return 1,069.41 1,258.92 2,328.33
Commission payable 150.75 (150.75) - *
Provision for slow moving inventories 437.12 528,77 965.89
Provision for doubtful loans and advances 573.24 31.84 605.08
Others 4.99 409.30 414.29

3,829.45 1,865.57 88.21 5,783.23

Deferred tax liabilities (net) (2,907.76) 1,019.97 88.21 (1,799.58)

Note:

a.
b.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are being offset as they relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

The Company has not created deferred tax on impairment loss of non-current financial assets (investments, doubtful capital advances and
loans aggregating to INR 14,017.62 lacs) as the Company does not expect taxable capital gain in future against which such deferred tax
assets can be realised. Had the Company created deferred tax on the same, the profit would have been higher by INR 3,164.86 lacs.

During the year, the Company has paid dividend to its shareholders for the year ended March 31, 2020. This has resulted in payment of
corporate dividend tax (CDT) amounting to INR 6,182.17 lakhs to the taxation authorities. CDT represents additional payment to taxation
authorities on behalf of shareholders. Hence CDT paid is charged to equity.
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

22 Other liabilities

Non-current

Deferred government grant (refer note below) 1,491.68 1,017.98
1,491.68 1,017.98

Current

Contract liabilities 170.86 521.01

Statutory llabillties 3,997.13 2,431.36

Advance against sale of Investments 67.02 321.08

Others 27.06 51.46
4,262.07 3,324.91

Note:

a. Deferred government grant includes assistance in the form of duty benefit availed under Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG)
Scheme on Import of property, plant and equlpment accounted for as government grant and belng amortised over the period of

contractual obligation.

During the year, the Company received INR 500.00 lacs on account of setting up plant in Sikklm under the Central Capital

Investment subsidy scheme, 2007 of North East Industrial and Investment Promotion Policy, 2007.

b. Movement of government grant:

Opening balance 1,017.98 756.36
Add: grant recelved during the year 3,907.56 1,409.52
Less: government grant Income (refer note 26) (3,433.86) (1,147.90)
Closing balance 1,491.68 1,017.98
23 Trade payables
Current ]
[ Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer 4,325.27 5,013.20
note 41)
fi. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro énterprlses and small 44,397.74 33,688.04
enterprises
L 48,723.01 38,701.24

Note:

a. The average credit period on purchases is up to 60 days for the Company. The Company however ensures that all payables are

pald within the pre agreed credlt limits.
b. Trade Payables Include due to related partles INR'9,293.08 lacs (31 March 2019 : INR 11,454.02 lacs).
The amounts are unsecured and non-Interest bearing.
d. For terms and conditions with related partles, refer to Note 40.

o

24 Other financial liabilities

Non-current

Lease liability (refer note 44) 255.69 -
255.69 B

Current

Lease liability (refer note 44) 113.26 -

Capiltal creditors 2,185.41 1,824.96

Trade/ securlty deposlts from vendors and others 3,712.72 1,931.32
6,011.39 3,756.28

Note:

a. Trade/ security deposlts includes interest accrued amounting to INR Nil and INR 28.98 lacs as at 31 March 2020 and as at 31

March 2019 respectively.




Mankind Pharma Limlted
Notes forming part of the standalone flnanclal statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amounts are In INR lacs uniess otherwlse stated

25

25.1

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

25.2

26

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of products 465,189.16 382,020.75
Sale of services 7,825.83 605.16
473,014.99 382,625.91
Disaggregated revenue Information
Set out below Is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:
Segment
Year ended Year ended

T d
ype of goods/services 31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(1) Type of goods & service

Pharmaceutical and healthcare products 465,189.16 382,020.75
Services income 7,825.83 605.16
Total revenue from contracts with customers 473,014.99 382,625.91
(Il) Geographlcal Information

Indla 467,798.84 377,949.03
Outslde India 5,216.15 4,676.88
Total revenue from contracts with customers 473,014.99 382,625.91
(1ll) TimIng of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point of time 465,189.16 382,020.75
Services transferred over the time 7,825.83 605.16
Total revenue from contracts with customers 473,014.99 382,625.91
Contract balances

Trade receivables 41,862.03 13,926.86
Contract llabllitles 170.86 521.01

The average credit period to customers ranges up to 60 - 90 days. No Interest is charged on trade recelvables up to the due date

from the date of the Involce.

Contract llabillties consist of short-term advances received to supply goods from customer.

Reconclling the amount of revenue recognlsed In the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price 495,748.17 402,004.06
Adjustments:
Sales return (15,700.89) (12,323.53)
Discount (2,923.29) (2,211.62)
Scheme Cost (4,109.00) (4,843.00)
Revenue from contracts with customers 473,014.99 382,625.91

Performance obllgatlons

Performance obligation Is satisfled when control of goods s transferred to the customer, generally on dellvery of the goods.

Sales of services: Obligation of the Company s to provide shared services to its group companles and accordingly recognises

revenue over the period of the contract based on the services rendered.

Other operating revenues

Export incentlves 203.37 59.45
Royalty income 6,064.52 -
Scrap sales 158.57 175.15
Other income - 45.37
6,426.46 279.97
Total revenue from operatlons 479,441.45 382,905.88
Other Income
Interest Income
Interest Income earned on:
- bank deposits (at amortlsed cost) 338.19 16.48
- financlal assets (at amortlsed cost) 1,310.37 1,907.58
Other Interest income 47.94 93.73
1,696.50 2,017.79
Other non-operating Income
Rental income 17.92 39.18
Insurance claim recelved 40.40 57.80
Other income 323.77 259.03
= 382.09 356.01
Other galns and losses
Unrealised gain on current investments measured at FVTPL 992,76 2,279.47
Realised galn on current investments measured at FYTPL 636,61 -
Dividend income from financial assets measured at FVTPL 294.74 0.06
Dividend Income from subsidiary 0.04 -
Government grant Income (refer note 22) 3,433.86 1,147.90
Share in profit/ loss of partnership flrms (net) 922,77 516.62
Galn on sale of Investment property 901.58 69.10
Galn on forelgn currency transactlons and translation (net) 123.93 46.50
7,306.29 4,059.65
s —
Total other Income {(j P\UR{”}\, 9,384.88 6,433.45
; & X,




Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

27

28

29

30

31

Cost of raw material and components consumed
a Raw material and components consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchase of pharmaceutical and healthcare products

Less: inventory at the end of the year

b Purchase of traded goods sold

Purchase of pharmaceutical and healthcare products

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock in trade

Opening Stock:
Finished goods
Work in progress
Stock in trade

a. In hand

b. In transit

Closing Stock:
Finished goods
Work in progress
Stock In trade

a. In hand

b. In transit

Net decrease/(increase)
Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other fund (refer note 36)
Gratuity expense (refer note 36)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance Costs

Interest expense on borrowings

Interest expense on financial liablilties at amortised cost
Interest on delay deposit of income tax

Interest on lease liabilities

Other finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreclation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)

Depreclation on Investment properties {refer note 4)
Amortisatlon of Intangible assets (refer note 5)
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 3)

2=
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8,328.96 4,712.95
43,935.31 29,067.88
52,264.27 33,780.83
(8,777.14) (8,328.96)
43,487.13 25,451.87
118,255.19 111,585.23
118,255.19 111,585.23
7,305.35 4,736.19
2,093.18 1,893.52
28,643.52 34,259.43
1,334.10 694.76
39,376.15 41,583.90
11,209.30 7,305.35
2,507.13 2,093.18
28,727.47 28,643.52
1,383.01 1,334.10
43,826.91 39,376.15
(4,450.76) 2,207.75
94,802.89 74,561.88
2,953.97 2,704.78
795.45 690.67
594.62 544.67
99.146.93 78,502.00
205.04 3,626.42
151.85 115.08
678.67 16.17
23.07 =
2,97 146.63
1,061.60 3,904.30
5,291.40 3,534.71
0.73 8.71
787.61 295.80
96.88 =
6.176.62




Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

32 (a) Other expenses

Note:

Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fuel
Rent
Repair and maintenance
- Machinery
- Building
- others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Communlcation expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Freight cartage and other distribution cost
Commission and brokerage
Director sitting fees
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (refer note 48)
Legal and professional charges
Payments to auditors (refer note below)
Training and recruitment expenses
Advertising and sales promotlon expenses
Security expenses
Testing and inspectlon charges
Bank charges
Loss on sale and write off of property, plant and equipment (net)
Bad debts
Impairment allowance for doubtful advances
Allowance for expected credit loss on trade receivables
Royalty
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Payments to statutory auditors (excluding input tax)

a) Audit fees
b) Reimbursement of expenses

32 (b) Impairment of non-current assets

32 (c)

Impairment of Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures (refer note 6)

Impairment of doubtful capital advances (refer note 10)

Total

Impairment losses on financial assets
Impairment allowance for loans - credit impaired (refer note 16)
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Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

3,994.22 2,871.50
4,648.96 3,506.96
1,727.00 1,833.51
1,420.55 919.88
358.52 153.37
1,598.93 1,116.36
511.76 412.83
4,097.38 3,808.70
885.96 962.62
19,603.31 20,832.17
281.06 323.66
3,295.16 3,364.60
9,309.61 8,751.30
2.40 .
1,659.72 1,359.20
2,278.92 5,638.75
53.82 60.43
2,118.98 3,138.82
20,808.74 28,896.96
360.66 439.32
3,547.17 3,123.55
48.58 56.46
62.05 100.70
35.79 81.35
401.74 131.87
75.05 -
689.92 =
2,623.35 2,632.89
86,499.31 94,517.76
53.82 58.60
- 1.83
53.82 60.43
7,826.60 201.70
1,231.39 5
9,057.99 201.70
3,100.00 -
3,100.00 =
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

33

33.1

33.2

Income taxes

Income tax recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
Current tax

In respect of the current year

In respect of the previous year

Deferred tax
In respect of the current year
Total Income tax expense recognised in the current year

Tax expense
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year

The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax

Statutory income tax rate

Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate

Effect of Income that is exempt from taxation

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit
Effect of accelerated allowances

Effect of concessions (tax holiday and similar exemptions)

Effect of income charged at lower tax rate

Deferred tax credit in respect of the prior years

Effect of deductions for tax purposes

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the previous years
Impact of reversal of deferred tax in tax holiday period

Effect of Indexation

Other adjustments

At the effective income tax rate of 24,.25% (31 March 2019; 25.64% )

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan

Total income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income

Note:
Effective tax rate has been calculated on profit before tax.

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

33,657.69 18,481.32
522,95 264.62
34,180.64 18,745.94
(3,511.06) (1,019.97)
(3,511.06) (1,019.97)
30,669.58 17,725.97
30,669.58 17,725.97
30,669.58 17,725.97
126,492.32 69,129.50
34.944% 34.944%
44,201.48 24,156.61
(425.46) (180.55)
5,423.30 906.06
(1,771.70) (1,860.71)
(15,910.28) (4,309.27)
(634.83) (1,189.07)
629.01 (67.46)
(353.23) .
522,95 264.62
(261.95) .
(749.72) .
- 5.74
30,669.58 17,725.97
393.47 88.21
393.47 88.21




Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

34 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

A.

0]

(i)

U]

@in

Contingent Liabilities

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
Sales tax claims 16.41 70.31

(N
. Income tax démands ( paid under protest INR 959.77 lacs
(" (March 31. 2018 : INR 273.92 lacs) ) A NG
1,449.35 1,247.87
Notes

Claims / suits filed against the Company not acknowledged as debts which represents various legal cases filed against the company. The
Company has disclalmed the liabliity and defending the action, The Company has been advised by its legal counsel that Its position is likely
to be upheld in the litigation process and accordingly no provision for any liability has been made in the financial statements.

The Company s contesting the demands of incorme tax and sales tax, and the management, Including its tax advisors, believe that its

position will likely be upheld in the appellate process. No tax expense has been accrued in the financial statements for the tax demand
raised. The management belleves that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the Company
financial position and results of operations.

Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 4,867.43 5,941.62
provided for (Net of advances 2020: INR 950.09 lacs and 2019: INR 758.42 lacs)

The Company has issued corporate guarantees to banks on behalf of and In respect of 21,500.00 21,500.00
fund and non fund based credit facilities avalled by [ts subsidiaries / group companies in

accordance with the policy of the Company. The Company has designated such

guarantees as "Insurance Contracts" and clarified such guarantees as contingent

liabillties. (See also note 42)

The Company has other commitments, for purchase orders which are issued after considering requirements as per operating cycle for
purchase of goods and services, in normal course of business.

Undrawn committed borrowing facility

The Company has availed working capital demand loan facilities from Citi Bank amounting to INR 29,500 lacs secured by first exclusive
charge on present and future book debts of the company. The Company has complied with all the debt covenants. An amount of INR
29,500 lacs (March 31, 2019: INR 10,500 lacs) remains undrawn as at year end.

Other Litigations

There are some cases filed against the company on account of patent infringement where the company has been made a party . The
company has not supplied any goods against these cases and believes, there is no liability as such which would devolve over the
company. The company is contesting these cases and believes its position will be upheld in the jurisdictional authorities.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable |osses.
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

35 Research and development expenditure

Details of research and development expenditure included under the respective expense/ property, plant and equipment/ capital
work in progress are as under:

A,

Revenue Expenditure

Cost of materlals consumed
Consumption of stores & Spares
Employee benefits expense
Repalr & Maintenance

Power & Fuel

Other expenses

Capital Expenditure
Property, plant and equipment

1,327.29 917.41

2,471.71 2,154.80

4,681.84 4,080.07

445.23 322.11

306.24 323.89

3,488.80 3,233.68

12,721.11 11,031.96

727.04 762.22

727.04 762.22

Grand Total 13,448.15 11,794.18

The Research and Development facilities are located at the Sector -1V, IMT Manesar, Gurugram of the Company which are approved
by the Department of Scientific and Industrlal Research, Ministry of Science and Technology, Govt. of India. The Company is entitled
to a weighted deduction of 150% of the eligible expenditure incurred at these units under section 35 (2AB) of the Income Tax Act,

1961.

The space has been left blank Intentionally
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36

m

(i)

Employee Benefits:

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 "Employee Benefits" (notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other relevant provision of the Act) are given below :

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the year is as under:

The Company’s contribution to the Employees Provident Fund is deposited with the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner for qualifylng employees,
Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retlrement benefit plan to fund the benefits.

The Company recognised INR 2,165.13 lacs (Previous year INR 1,926.21 lacs) towards provident fund contributions In the statement of profit and loss.
The contribution payable to the plan by the Company is at the rate specified in rules to the scheme.

Hon'ble Supreme Court of India vide its judgement dated February 28, 2019 on Provident Fund required the Companies to include allowances for the
purpose of PF contribution. Subsequent to the year end, the Company vide assessment letter no. 28212 dated 04 August 2020 received from
Employees Provident Fund Organisation whereln the provident fund department has completed their assessment for FY 2015-16 to FY 2019-20. Hence,
the Company is of the view, that there is no further liability on account of the Judgement.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity plan

The gratuity liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death of an employee. The aforesaid liability is calculated on the basis of fifteen
days salary (i.e. last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service subject to completion of four years and two forty days in service.

In accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company contributes to a defined benefit plan ("the gratuity plan") run by Mankind Pharma (P)

Limited Employees Group Gratuity Trust ("the trust’). The trust has tzken a Group Gratuity Scheme which is administered by Life Insurance
Corporation ("LIC") of India.

Risks associated with Plan Provisions

Risks associated with the plan provisions are actuarlal risks. These risks are:- (i) investment risk, (ii) interest rate risk (discount rate risk}, (iii)
mortality risk and (iv) salary growth risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to Government Bonds Yield. If plan liability is funded and return on plan assets is below this
rate, it will create a plan deficit,

Interest rate risk (discount rate risk) A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liabllity

Mortalily risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants. For this report we have used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)
ultimate table (PY) (IALM 2006-08 ultimate table).

A change in mortality rate will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Salary growth risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liabllity is calculated with the assumption of salary increase
rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants
from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing
on the plan's liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31 March, 2020.
The present value of defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit
credit method.

Principal actuarial assumptions:

Principle actuarial assumption used to determine the present value of the benefit obligation are as follows:

S. Particulars Refer note below As at As at
No. 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
i.  Discount rate (p.a.) 1 6.40% 7.40%
ii.  Rate of return on assets (p.a.) 2 7.40% 7.60%
iii. Salary escalation rate (p.a.) -Office Staff 3 8.50% 6.00%
Salary escalation rate (p.a.) -Field Staff 3 6.00% 6.00%
Notes
1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of
obligations.

2 The expected return is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the
estimated term of the obiigations.
3 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

e :
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31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(iii) Demographic assumptions:

Retirement age 58 Years
Mortality rate (100% of IALM 12-
14} Ultimate
Average outstanding service of employee up to retirement (years) 7.58
Number of employees 10,898
Attrition rate Service up to 5

year: Field Staff -
25%,0ffice Staff -

58 Years
(100% of IALM
06-08) Ultimate

9.29
10,030
Service up to
5 years - 22%,
above 5 years -

20%,Service 7%
above 5 years:
Field Staff -
11%,Office Staff -
6%
The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plan and amounts recognised in the Company'’s financial statements:
a. Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefits plans are as follows:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current service cost 571.53 520.39
Net interest expenses 223.92 170.28
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in statement of profit and loss 795.45 690.67
b. Remeasurement (gain)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income :
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in demographic assumptions 115.00 -
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in financial assumptions 807.62 77.17
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in experience variance 288.25 85.72
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in plan assets (84.87) 89.55
Component of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 1,126.00 252.44

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense' in the statement of profil and

loss. The remeasurement of the net detined benefit liability is included in the other comprehensive income.

Gy Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet :
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Present value of defined benefit obligation 6,126.41 4,527.22
Less : Fair value of plan assets 1,485.04 1,284.36
Funded status - deficit (4,641.37) (3,242.86)
Current portion = =
Non-current portion (refer note 20) (4,641.37}) (3,242.86)
d. Movement in the fair value of the defined benefit obligation:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening defined benefit obligation 4,527.22 3,866.99
Current service cost 571.53 520.39
Interest cost 318.96 279.27
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation 1,210.87 162.89
Acquisition/Divestiture (22.94) (6.19)
Benefits paid (479.23) (296.13)
Closing defined benefit obligations 6,126.41 4,527.22

|
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e, Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening fair value of plan assets 1,284.36 1,434.14
Expected return on plan assets 95.04 108.99
Contributions recelved 500.00 126.91
Benefits paid (479.23) (296.13)
Actuarial gain / (loss) 84,87 (89.55)
Closing fair value of plan assets 1,485.04 1,284.36

The plan assets of the Company managed through a trust namely Mankind Pharma (P) Limited Employees Group Gratuity Trust ("the trust"). The trust
has taken a Group Gratuity Scheme which is administered by Life Insurance Corporation ("LIC") of India. The plan assets of the Company are managed
through the trust. The details of investments relating to these assets are not shown by them. Hence, the composition of each major category of plan
assets, the percentage or amount that each major category constitutes to the fair value of the total plan assets has not been disclosed.

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Broad categories of plan assets as a percentage of total assets
Insurer managed funds 100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%

f. Sensitivity analysis

Slgnificant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity
analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumplions vccurring at the end of Lhe reporting perlod, while
holding all other assumptions constant,

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (-/+0.5%) 256.80 (238.79) 203.44 (188.70)

(% change compared to base due Lo sensilivity)

Salary Growth Rate (-/+0.5%) (226.10) 238.83 (188.27) 200.85
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated,

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been caiculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit liability recognised In the
Balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

g. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefit obligation is as follows:

As at As at
Expected cash flows over the next 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Within the next 12 months 661.09 434.26
Between 2 and 5 years 2,224.68 1,560.35
More than 5 years 2,361.51 1,830.14

=
ZAAR A




Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts are In INR lacs unless otharwlse stated

37 Capltal Management

For the purposes of Company's capltal gement, Capital incluges eauity attributable to the equity holders of the Company and all other equity reserves.
The primary objective of the Company's capltal management is to safeguard its abllity to continue as golng concern and to ensure that it maintalns an
efficlent capital structure and maximize shareholder value.

Tha Compalty tnanages Its ¢apltal structure and makes adjustments |n light ef ehanges In econemic conditions and the requiremaents of the financial
cavenants, The Company is net subject to any externally Imposed capltal requirements. No changes were made In the objectives, policies ot processes for
managing capltal during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 except for budgeting for cash flow projactions considéring the Impact of
ongaing pandemic COVID - 19, The Company has negative capital gearing ratlon as It does not have any debt outstanding as at 31 March 2020 and 31
March 2019, Capltal gearing ratlo |5 nek dabt divided by total capital plus nat debt and Net debl is calculated as loans and borrowings less cash and cash

equivatant,

The following table summarizes the capltal structure of the Company: __March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Debt (a) (refer note 19) - 19,000.00

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14) 7,749.78 7,247.91

Total Cash (b) 7,749.78 7,247.91

Net debt (¢ = (a-b) (7,749.78) 11,752.09

Equity / Net Worth 365,145.30 306,481.69

Capltal and Net Debt 357,395.52 318,233.78

Gearing ratlo (Net Debt/Capltal and Net Debt) (2.17%) 3.69%

38 FInanclal Instruments

Fl lal risk 1ent objectlve and policles

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets Include trade and other recelvables, and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from Its
operations,

The Company's financial risk management Is an Integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company is exposed to market risk,
credit risk and Nquidlty risk,

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the
appropriate flnancial risk governance framewark for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors and Audit Committee. This process provides
assurance to Company's senior managemant that the Company's flnancial risk-taking activitles are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and
that financial risk are ldentified, measured and managed In atcordance with Company policies and Company risk objective. In the event of crisis caused due
to external factors such as caused by recent pandemic "COVID-19", (he management assesses the recoverabllity of Its assets, maturity of its llabillties to
factor it in cash flow forecast to ensure there is enough liquidity in these situations through internal and external source of funds. These forecast and
assumptions are reviewed by board of directors.

Financial assets and liabllitles:
The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts, are set out below:

March 31, 2020 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortlsed Cost Total carrylng Total falr value
value
Financlal assets
Investments 39,416.50 - - 39,416.50 39,416.50
Trade recelvables - - 41,862.03 41,862.03 41,862.03
Cash and cash equivalents - - 7.749.78 7,749.78 7.749.78
Other Bank balances 12,045.02 12,045.02 12,045.02
Loans - - 21,188.20 21,188.20 21,188.20
Others - . 1,448.06 1,448.06 1,448.06
Total 39,416.50 - 54,293,090 123,709.59 123,709.59
Financlal liabllitles
Trade payables - . 48,723.01 48,723.01 48,723.01
Others . - 6.267.08 6,267.08 6,267.08
Total = - 54,990.09 54,990,009 54,990.09
March 31, 2019 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total carrying Total falr value
value
Flnanclal assets
Investments 31,416.82 - - 31,416.82 31,416.82
Trade receivables - . 13,926.86 13,926.86 13,926.86
Cash and cash equivalents - - 7.247.91 7,247.91 7,247.91
Loans . - 25,133.93 25,133.93 25,133.93
Others - o 1,324.89 1,324.89 1,324.89
Total 31,416.82 - 47,633.59 79,050.41 79,050,411
Financlal llabllitles
Borrowings - - 19,000.00 19,000.00 19,000.00
Trade payables - - 38,701.24 38,701.24 38,701.24
Others - - 3,756.28 3,756.28 3,756.28
Total - - 61,457.52 61,457,52 61,457,52

B Falr value measurements

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, other current financial assets and other current financial
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturitles of these instruments.

The fair value of the other financlal assets and llablilties is included at the amount at which the Instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing partles, other than in a forced or liquldatlon sale, The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1) The fair value of unguoted Instruments, loans from banks, other non-current financlal assets and non-current financial liabllities is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remalning maturitles. The valuation requires
management to use unobservable inputs In the model, of which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed In the tables below. Management regularly
assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and determines thelr impact on the total fair value,
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a)

n

2) The falr values of the Company'’s interest-bearing borrowings are determined by using effective Interest rate (EIR) method using discount rate that
reflects the ssuers borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 March 2020 was assessed to be
insignificant, .

3) Long«term recelvables/payables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as Interest rates, risk factors, Individual creditworthiness of the
counterparty and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on thls evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of
thesa racalvables, .

4} Fair value hlerarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for Identical assets or liabllitles.

Level 2 - Inputs ather than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or llabllity, either directly (l.e., as prices) or Indirectly
(l.e., derlved from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or ltabllitles that are not based on observable market data (unobservable Inputs).

Falr value as at Falr value Valuation
hlerarchy techniques and
(Level) key Inputs
Financlal assets As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Investments (refer note I below) 39,416.50 31,416.82 Level 1 refer note | below
Trade recelvables 41,862.03 13,926.86 Level 3
Cash and cash equlvalents 7.749.78 7,247.91 Level 1
Other Bank balances 12,045.02 . Level 1
Loans 21,188.20 25,133.93 Level 3
Others 1,448.06 1,324.89 Level 3
Flnancial Llabilitles
Borrowings = 19,000.00 Level 3
Trade payables 48,723.01 38,701.24 Level 3
Others 6,267.08 3,756.28 Level 3

Note; -

i. Investment In mutual funds traded in actlve markets are determined by reference to quotes from the financial institutions; for example: Net asset value
(NAV) for Investments In mutual funds declared by mutual fund house.

Risk management objectives
Risk management framework

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financlal instruments:
- Market risk

- Liquidity risk

- Credit risk

The Company’s board of directors has overall responslbillty for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

The Company's risk management policies are established to Identify and analyse tha risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits-and controls
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk managefment policies and systems are reviewed perlodically to reflect changes In market conditions and
the Company's activities. Tha Company, through Its tralning, standards and procedures, alms to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment
in which all employeas understand thalr rofes and abligations.

The audit commitize overseos how management monitors campliance with the ¢ pany's risk gement policles and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit commiltee is assisted In Its oversight role by internal
audit, Interna! audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk managernant controls and proceduras, the results of which are reparted to the audit
commitiea.

Market risk :

Market risk ls the risk that the falr value of future cash Naws of a financial instrumiant will fluctuate because of chonges In market prices, Market prices
comprises three types of risk: currancy rate risk, Interast rate risk and othar price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risks Include loans and barrowings, deposits, Investments , and fareign currency receivabies and payables, The sensitivity
analysis In the following sections relate to the position as at reporting date, The analysis exclude the Impact of movements in market varlables on: Lhe
carrying values of gratulty and other post-ratirement obllgations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and labllities, The sensitivity of the ralevant Profit
and Loss itam and equity is the affect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks, This is based on tha financial assets and financial llablities
held as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2014,

The Company manages surplus funds thraugh Investments In mutual fund plans regulated by Securlties Exchange Board of Indla (SEBI). The NAV declared
by Asset Management Companies (AMC) has genemally remained constant on the mutual fund plans taken by the Company. However, if the NAV of the fund
Is increasedidecraased by 5%, the sensitivity analysis has been mantioned bejow;

As at As at
Movement of 5% March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019
Impact on profit or loss 1,970.83 1,570.84

Forelgn Currency Risk

Foreian currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In foreign axchange rates,
Tha Company's exposure to the risk of changes in forelgn oxchange rates relates primarlly to the Company's operating activities {when revenue or sxpense
is denominated In forelgn currency). Foreign currency exchange rate exposure is partly balanced by purchasing of goods from the respective countries, The

Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from forelgn currency transactions and foligws established risk management pallcies.
Forelgn currency risk sensltivity
The following tables damonstrata the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD & SGI exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The

impact on the Company profit before tax and equity Is due to ¢hanges In the fair value of manatary assets and liabilities. Foreign currency exposures
recognised by the Company that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as under:

March 31,2020 Impact on profit before tax and
Foraign Currency  Indian Rupoes 1% Increase 1% decrease
Nature Currency In Lacs. in Lacs, In Lacs. in Lacs.
Receivable US Dollar (USD} 20.42 1,539.69 15.40 (15.40)
Payable US Dollar (USD) (2.88) (217.20) (2.17) 2.17
Investment US Dollar (USD) 190,01 12517.27 125.17 (125.17)

Investment Singapore Dollar { SGD) 0.41 19,78 0.20 (0.20)
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Impact on profit before tax and
1% Increase 1% decrease

March 31,2019

Foreign Currency  Indian Rupees

Currency Currency In Lacs. In Lacs. In Lags, In Lacs.
Recelvable US Dollar (USD) 29,51 2,041.28 20.41 (20.41)
Payable US Dollar (USD) (2.52) (74.30) (0,74) 0.74
Investment US Dollar (USD) 180.01 11,816.77 118.17 (118.17)
Investment Singapore Dollar ( SGD) 0.41 19.78 0.20 (0,20)
xn Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate Is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a flnanclal Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market Interest rates. The
exposure of the Company'’s fixed rate financlal llabllltles to Interest rate risk Is as follows:
Movement of 1% March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Borrowings (Impact on profit and loss) - 190.00
The welghted average Interest rate on the fixed rate financlal labllities Is 8.28% for March 31, 2019 ,
(i) Commodity Price Risk
The Company ls affectad by the price volatility of certain commoditias, Its operating activitles raquire the ongaing trading of pharmaceutical items and
therefore require a continuous supply of pharmacautical products, Due to COVID 19, the significantly increased vaiatility of the quantity of pharmaceutical
preducts might lead to a situaticn of increase in lead time Lo procure the goods for this the Company's Beard of Directors has developad and enacted a risk
management strategy regarding commodity price risk and its mitigation.
b) Liquldity
Liguldity risk Is defned as the risk that the Company will not be able to settla or meat Its obligations on Ume o at reasonable prica, THe Company's
objective Is to at all times maintain optimum lavels of liquidity to meet Its cash and liquidity requirements. The Company closely monitors its liguidity
position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintalns adaquate source of financing through the use of shorl term bank deposits and cash
credit facility. Processes and policies related to such risks are oversaen by senior mar lanagement i the C v's liquidity position
through rolling forecasts on the basis of expactad cash flows, The Company assessed the concantration of risk with respect to Its debt and concluded I\ to be
low. The Comy TRmilng cor d to malntaining a haalthy liquidity, gearing ratio, delevaraging and strangthening our balance sheat, Thia maturity
proflle of the Company's financial llabllities based on the ramalning perlod from the dale of balance shaat to the contractual maturlly date Is given i the
table below, The figures reflect the contractual undiscounted cash obligation of the Company,
As at March 31, 2020
Flnanclal llabllitles Less More Total
than 1 year than 1 year
Trade payables 48,723.01 - 48,723.01
Others 6,267,08 - 6,267.08
48,723,01 - 48,723.01
As at March 31, 2019
Financlal Nabllitles Less More Total
than 1 year than 1 year
Borrowlings 19,000.00 - 19,000.00
Trade payables 38,701.24 = 38,701.24
Others 3,756.28 - 3,756.28
57,701.24 - 57,701.24
c) CredIt risk

Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financlal loss. The
Company is expased to cradit risk from Its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks,
foreign exchange transactions and nther financial instruments.

Possible cradit risk

LCregit risk management
Cradit risic is the risk of financial loss to the Company If 3 customer or counterparty
to a financlal Instrument falls to meet |ts contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and  investment
secyritles. Credit risk is managed through cradit approvals, establishing cradit limits
and cantinuolisly monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the
Company grants credit terms In the normal course of business, The Company
establishes an allowance for doubltful debts and Impairment thal reprasents Its
estimate of Incurred losses jn respect of trade and Bther recelvables and
Investments, The loans advanced by the Company carrles Interest and ara grantad
after evaluating the purpose and cradit worthiness of the counter parly,

Credit risk related to trade receivables and Ioans

Morsover, glven the diverse pature of the Company’s b s trade rec |
are spread over 8 number of customers with no significant eoncentration of cradit
risk. No single customar accounted for 10.0% or more of trade recelvable on 3 %
tasls In any of the years Indlcated.

Recelvables are deemed to be past dug or Impaired with referance to the Company's
normal tarms and conditions of business. These terms and conditions are
determined on a case to case basls with referance to the custemer’s cradit quality
and pravalling market conditions, Recelvables thet are rlassified &s ‘past due’ in the
above tables are those that have not been settled within the terms and canditions
that have been sgreed with that customer.

An impairment analysis is performed at each regorling date on trade receivables by
lifetime expected credil loss method based on provision matrix. The maximum
Bxposure Lo cradit sk at the feporting date Is the carrying value of sach class of
financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as securlty. The Company
evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade recelvables as low, as its
customers are located n several Jurlsdictions and industries and oparate In largaly
Independent markets.
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standal fl lal for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts are In INR lacs unless otherwise statod

Credlt risk related to bank balances Company holds bank balances with reputed and creditworthy banking institution
within the approved exposures limit of each bank, None of the Company's cash
oquivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or Impaired. Credit risk
frem balances with banks end financtal institutions: |s managed by the Compariy’s
treasury department In accordance with the Company's policy, Investments of
surplus funds are made In benk deposits and other risk free securitles, The limits are
set to minimize the concentratlon of risks and therefore mitigate financlal loss
through counterparty’s potential fallure to make payments.

The Company’s maximum expostire to credit risk for the componants of the balance

sheat at 31 March 2020 Is the carrying amounts . The Company’s maxlmum
exposure relating to financlal Instrument |s noted In llquidity tabie balow.

Trade Recelvables and other financlal assets are written off when there Is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor falling

As at Ag at

March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Flnanclal assets for which all Is red using 12 hs E: ted Credit Loss Mathod (ECL)
Cash and cash equlvalents 7,749.78 7,247.91
Other Bank balances 12,045.02 B
Loans ! 21,188.20 25,133,93
Others 1,448.06 1,324.89
Financlal assets for which allowance Ils measured using Life time Expected Cradit Loss Method (ECL)
Trade recelvables 41,862.03 13,926.86
Credlt risk related to Investments The Company has made Investments In highly llquld SEB! regulated public sector

mutual funds to meet thelr short term llquidity objectives. The Company analyses
the credit worthiness of the party before Investing their funds.

'
The Company limits Its- exposure to credit risk by generally Investing In Bguid
seturltles and only with counterparties that have a good cradit rating. The Company
dons not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties, and
does not have any significant concentrallon of axposures to spicific Industry sectors
or specific country risks,

Other cradlt rlek The Company Is exposed to credlt risk in r1elallon Lo lvans and financlal guarantees
glven to/ on behalf of subsldlarles/ assoclate companles. '

The space has been left blank Intentlonally




Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts are In INR lacs unless otherwlse stated

39 Segment Information

39.1 Description of Segment and principal actlvities

As per Ind AS-108, “Operating Seament” ( specified under the section 133 of the Companles Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indlan Accounting
Standards) Rule 2015 {as amended from time to time) and other relevant provision of the Act ) the Company’s chlef operating decision maker ("CODM’) has
Identified pharmaceuticals and other related products as the reportable segments. The Company’s has leased certain immaovable properties to third partles
and have Investment In subslidiaries having leasing business. However, since the revenue, total assets and profit |s less than 10% hence this Is nat
considered as reportable segment. Operating Segments have been defined and presented based on the regular review by CODM as per the following :

Pharmaceutical and other related products- The Cormpany's maln business ts manufacturing and trading of pharmaceutical and other health care products In
India. The Company has three manufacturing facilities at Paonta Sahib In the state of Himachal Pradesh, one manufacturing facility In the state of Sikkim
and three in- house research and development centre at IMT Manesar, Gurgaon In the state of Haryana for carrying out research In pharmaceutical

products,

Since the company Is having only one reportable segment hence disclosure requirement as per Ind As 108 Is not applicable.

39.2 Geographical Information
The following table provides an analysis of the Corpany’s sales by region In which the customer is located, Irrespective of the origin of the goods.,

Revenue from operations Total assets
Year ended Year ended March Year ended March Year ended
March 31, 2020 31, 2019 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Indla 474,225.30 378,229.00 438,672.93 383,015.67
Outslde Indla 5;216.15 4,676.88 14,437.71 2,041.28
Total 479,441.45 382,905.88 453,110.64 385,056.95

39.3 No single customer has accounted for more than 10% of the Company’s revenue for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.
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40

I st for the vear ended March 31, 2020

Related party disclosures
List of related partles and relationships
List of related partles

Subsldlaries

Joint Ventures

Assoclates

Kev Management Personnel (KMP}

Relatives of KMP (with whom transactions have taken place)

Others (with whom transactions have taken place)
Enterprises in which directors are interested

Enterprises In which relatives of directors are Interested

Post emplovment benefit plan for benefited amployees

Lifestar Pharma Private Limited

Maanat Labs Private Limited

Shree Jee Laboratory Private Limited

Lifestar Pharma LLC

Mankind Pharma Pte Limited

Medlpack Innovations Private Limited
Broadwayv Hospitallty Services Private Limited
Pavl Buildwell Private Limited

Prolilfune Lifesclences Private Limited
Jaspack Industrles Private Limited

Packtime Innovatlons Private Limited
Mahananda Spa and Resorts Private Limited
Relax Pharmaceutlcals Private Limited
Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Vetbesta Labs (Partnership firm)

MedIforce Healthcare Private Limited

JPR Labs Private Limited

Appian Propertles Prlvate Limited

Pharma Force Labs (Partnershlp firm)

Penta Latex LLP (Limlited llabllity partnership firm)
Mankind Speclalities (Partnership firm)

North East Pharma Pack (Partnership firm)
Superba Warehousing LLP {Limited liabllity partnership firm)

Superba Developers {Partnership firm)
Superba Bulldwell (South) (Partnershlp firm)
Superba Bulldwell (Partnership flrm)

ANM Pharma Private Limited

Slrmour Remedles Private Limited

Om Sai Pharma Pack (Partnershlp firm)
J.K Print Pack (Partnership firm)

A, S. Packers (Partnershlp firm}

N.S. Industrles (Partnershlo firm)

Chatrman and Whole Time Director
Ramesh Chand lineia

Whole Tima Director and CEQ
Raijeev Juneia

Managing Director

Sheetal Arora

Whole TIme Dlrector

Prem Kumar Arora

Arlun Junefa

Satlsh Kumar Sharma

Prabha Arora

Independent Director

Surendra Lunla

Bharat Anand

Sanilv Dwarkanath Kaul

Leonard Lee Kim

Tllokchand Punamchand Ostwal

Anui Girotra (alternate to Leonard Lee Kim)
Adherai Singh

Eklavva Juneia
Chanakyva Junefa
Ayush! Juneia
Esha Arora

Ria Chopra Juneia
Nidhi Arora
Poonam Juneia
Puia Juneia

Alankrit Handicraft Private Limited
Star Infra Developers Prlvate Limited

A To Z Packers

JC Junefa Foundatlon

Casablanca Securltles Private Limited

Indu Bulldwell Prlvate Limited

Luxor Metaltech Industrles Private Limited

Nextwave (India)

Nextwave Indla Prlvate Limited

Paonta Process Eaulpment

Print Man

Rashl Apparels Private Limited

Rashml Exports Private Limited

Saburl Sai Ram Bulldtech Private Limited

Sirmour Remedies Pilvale Linilled

Teen Murti Product Private Limited

Pathkind Diagnostics Private Limited

Ramesh Juneia Family Trust

Raieev Juneija Famlly Trusk

Prem Sheetal Family Trust

Intercity Corporate Towers LLP

Applan Assoclates Infrastructure Private Limited

Gvan Infrastructure Company Private Limited
Mankind Blosys Private Limited

Applan Proijects LLP (limited llabllity partnershlp firm)
Applan Bulldwell LLP (limited liabllity partnership firm)
Applan Bulldrise LLP (limited liabllity partnership firm)
Applan Buildhelahts LLP (limited liabllity partnership firm)
Casablanca Lifesclences LLP

ANM Properties Pvt. Ltd.

Sangam Realtech Private Limited

Avushi & Poonam Estates LLP

Mankind Pharma (P) Limited Emplovees' Group Gratuity Trust
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financlal statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020
All amounts are In INR lacs unless otherwise stated

V. Remuneration of KMP*

The remuneration of key management personnel of the Company are set out below In aggregate for each of the categorles specified in Ind AS 24 Related Party

disclosures:

Prem Kumar Arora
Ramesh Chand Juneja
Rajeev Juneja
Sheetal Arora

Arjun Juneja

Year ended

March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

1,226.45 885.39
2,326.13 1,673.46
2,913.36 2,056.07
1,180.30 840.28

853.89 597.05
8,500.13 6,052.25

*Does not Include the provislon made for gratulty and leave beneflts, as they are determined on an actuarlal basls for all the employees together,

Remuneration payable to KMP

Prem Kumar Arora
Ramesh Chand Juneja
Rajeev Juneja
Sheetal Arora

Arjun Juneja

As at

March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

488.93 43.46
922.91 87.02
1,135.53 139,05
474.71 41.26
349,92 30.02
3,372.01 340.81

41 Information as required to be furnished as per sectlon 22 of the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended Mar¢
31, 2020 Is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such partles have been identifled on the basls of Information avallable with the

Company,

(a)  Principal amount and Interest due thereon remaining unpald to any supplier
covered under MSMED Act }

(h)  The amount of Intereat pald hy tha huyar in terms of section 16, uf Ue MSMED
Act, 2006 alony with the amounts of the paymnenl inade to the suppller beyond
the appolnted day during each accounting year,

(c) The amount of Interest duc and payable for the period of delay In.maklng
payment (which have been pald but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the Interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006

(d) The amount of Interest accrued and remalning unpald at the end of each
accounling year,

(e) The amount of further Interest rematning due and payable even In the succeeding
years, untll such date when the Interest dues as above are actually pald to the
small enterprise for the purpose of dlsallowance as a deductlble expenditure
under sectlon 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

As at
March 31, 2020

4,325.27

As at
March 31, 2019

5,013.20

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such partles have been identifled on the basis of information collected by the
Management.




Mankind Pharma Limited

Notes forming part of the dal Ll lal its for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts are In INR lacs unless otherwlse statad

42 Financlal guarantees

The Company has Issued financial guarantees to banks on behalf of and in respect of [oan facllltles avalled b
Company has d | such AS I Contracts’. th

liabllitles recognized In the balance shaet under these contracts.”)

Refer below for detalls of the financlal guarantees Issued:

Yy Its group companies, In accordance with the policy of the Company. The
e Company has classifled financlal guarantees AS contingent llabllitlies. Accordingly, there are No assets and

Amount of Guarantee glven A of loan di
agalnst guarantees
Ag at March Ag at March As at March A9 at March
Company name 31, 2020 31, 2019 31, 2020 31,2019 Purpose

ANM Pharma Private Limited 10,000.00 11,500.00 871,71 1,204.72 |ExtendIng fund based and non fund based credit
facllitles for capital expenditure and working
capltal requirement.

Packtime Innovatlons'Private Limited 6,500.00 5,000.00 800,00 - Extending fund based and non fund based credit
facllitles for capltal expenditure and working
capltal requirement. .

Shree Jee Laboratory Private Limited 1,500.00 1,500.00 - - Extending fund based and non fund based credit
facllitles for capltal expenditure and working
capltal requirement,

JPit Labs Private Limited 3,500.00 3,500.00 2,249.11 1,417,24 |Extending fund based and non fund based credit
facllitles for capltal expenditure and working
capital requirement.

Total 21,500.00 21,500.00 3,920.82 2,621.96
=
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standal fi tat for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otharwise stated

44 Leases
(i) The Company's laase asset primarily conslst of leases for Land, offiee bullding, warehouses and related facilitles Having the varlous lease torms, Effectiva April 1,
2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard Lo all lease contracts existing on Aprll 1, 2019 using the medified retrospectiva
' i Iy, the C y recorded the lease |labllity at the present value of the ramalning lease pay dl | at the Incr borrowlng
rata a5 on the date of itlon and has flght of use astet an pmount equal to lease llability adjusted for any related prepald and occrued leaso
payments previously recognlsed,
(] The following Is the summary of practical expedients elected on inltlal appllcation:

() Applled a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of simllar assets in simllar economic environment with a similar end date
(b) Applled the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabllities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of Inltial application

(c) Exclutled the initlal direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initlal application
(d) Appliad the practical by notr ing whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of Initlal appllication. Instead applied the standards
only to cuntracts that ware praviously ldentified as leases upder Ind AS 17,

(e) Used hindsight In determlning the lease term where the contract contalned options to extend or terminate the lease.

(1) FollowIng Is carrying value of right of use assets recognised on date of transition and the movements thereof during the year ended March 31, 2020:
(INR in lacs)
o Right of Use Asset
Particulars T hold Land | Leasehold Bullding | Bullding Total
Balance as at April 1, 2019 - - -
Transition impact an account of adoption of Ind AS 116 “Leases” (refor Note a) - 217.89 217.89
Reclassified from property, plant ard equipmant on accolnt of adoption of Ind AS 116 991.10 - 991.10
"Leases” | refar Note 4)
Roclagsified from Earnest money and Seclrity Daposits (refer note below) = 18.88 18.88
Total Right of Use on the date of transition 991.10 236.77 1,227.87
Additions during the year - 209.65 209.65
Detetion during the year - r .
Dapreciation of Right of usa ascots (refer note 32) (12.98) (83,90) (96.88)
Balance as at March 31! 2020 978.12 362.52 1,340.64
) The following is the carrylng value of lease liabllity on the date of transition and movement thereof during the year ended March 31, 2020:
) (INR in tacs)
Particulars Amount
Transition impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 "Leases” A17.50
Additions during the year 209.65
Finance cost accrued during the year 23.07
Deletions -
Payment of lease liahilltles (B1.67)
368.95
==}
Current maturities of Lease liability {refer note 25} 113.26
Non-Current Lease Liabillly {refer nole 25} 255.69
368.95
{v) The adoption of the new standard has also resulted in decrease in profit before tax and profit for the year by INR 25.30 lacs (Increase in Depreciation expense

and flnance cost by INR 83.90 lacs and INR 23.07 lacs respectively with corresponding decrease in other expense by INR 81,67 lacs). The effect of this adoption
is insignificant on earnings per share. Ind AS 116 has also resulted in an increase in cash Inflows from operating actlvitles and an increase In cash outflows from
financing activities on account of lease payments by INR 81.67 lacs each. Total Deferred tax expense and deferred tax liabillties are decreased by INR 2,24
lacs,

(vi) The maturity analysis of lease llabillties are as follows:
Maturity of lease liabilities
Set out below are the undiscounted potential flture rental payments relating to periods:

Lease obligations March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Not |ater than one year 139.63 -
Later than one year and not later than five years 275.53
Later than five years =
Interest expense March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Not later than one year 26.37 -
Later than one year and not later than five years 19.84
Later than five years - -
(viii) The weighted average incremental borrowIng rate applied to lease llabilities as at April 1, 2019 Is 8.5%
(Ix) Rental expense recorded for short-term leases are as follows:
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 96.88 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities 23.07
Expense relating to short-term leases 1,727.00 1,833.51
Expense relating to low value leases = =
1,846.95 1,833.51
(x) The difference between the lease obligation recorded, as of March 31, 2019, under Ind AS 17 (disclosed under Note 42 of standalone financlal statements) and

the value of the lease liability as of April 1, 2019, is on account of use of practical hindsight in determining the lease term, where the contract contatned optlons
to extend or terminate the lease In measurlng the lease liabillty in accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting the lease liabilities to the present value under Ind
AS 116,

The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease commitments at 31 March 2019 (as disclosed in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019) to the lease liabllities recognised at 1 April 2019:

March 31, 2020
Total operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 March 2019 -

Cancellable period and reasonably certain extension option considered in lease term (Gross Lease liability) 258.00

Discounting impact (using incremental borrowing rate) (40.11)

Total lease liabilitles recognised under Ind AS 116 at 1 April 2019 217.89
xi) The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabllities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obllgations related to

lease liabilities as and when they fall due.
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Mankind Pharma Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

All ampunts aro in INR lacs unless otherwise stated
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Distributions mada

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid:
Dividend far the year ended March 31, 2019 (INR 4.45 per share) ( Previous year INR 0.60 per share) 17,826.19 2,403.53
Interim dividend for the yedr ended March 31, 2020 (INR 3.10 per share) { Previous year Nil per share) 12,418.24 =
Dividend distritsution tux G,182.17 489,38

36,426.60 2,892.89

Proposed dividend on equlty shares not recognised as a habllity
Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2020 (INR NIl per share) (Previous year INR 4.45 per share) - 17,826.19
Dividend distributlon tax on above = 3,665.06

- 21,491.25
Proposed dividend on equity shares is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting and not recognlsed as liabillty
as at the Balance Sheet date,

Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year,
Diluted earnings per equity share has been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potentlal equity shares outstanding
during the year,

Unit Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Net profit after tax from operations INR lacs 95,822,74 51,403.53
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year Number 400,588,440 400,588,440
Nominal Value of Equlty Shares INR 1,00 1.00
Basic earnings per share from operations INR 23.92 12,83
Diluted earnings per share from operatlons INR 23.92 12.83

Remittance of dividend to non-resident shareholders in foreign currency:

Year ended March Year ended March

31, 2020 31, 2019
Number of sharehalders 4.00 4.00
Number of shares held 84,123,583 84,123,583
Dividend remitted {in INR lacs) 6,351.33 504.74
Year to which it relates 2018-19 and 2019-20 2017-18

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

As par provislons of scction 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has Lu incur at least 2% of average net profits of the preceding three tinancial years
towards Corporate Soclal Responsibllity ("CSR"). Accordingly, a CSR committee has been formed for carrying out CSR activities as per the Schedule VII of the
Companles Act, 2013, The Company has contrlbuted a sum of INR 1,659.72 lacs (March 31, 2019: INR 1,359.30 lacs) towards education and health care
services and charged the same to the Statement of Profit And Loss.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Details of CSR Expenditure:
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 1,931,65 1,837.82

Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 for the purposes other than construction/ acquisition of asset is INR 1,659.72 lacs and
INR 1,359.30 lacs respectively and INR 271.94 lacs (Previous year INR 478,53 lacs) remained unpaid at year end.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-8 “Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors” (specifled under sectlon 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

read with Rule 7 of Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2015) are given below: Following are the restatements made in the current year financial statements in
previous year.

: 2 31 2019
Particulars 31{':?"::'&:\19 [:;:;tgd) Nature
Assets
Investment properties - current 281.37 - Reclasslfication items
Assels held for sale - 281.37 |Reclassification lteims

Other financial asselts

Security and earnest money deposits - non current 357.98
Security deposits to related partles - non current = G48.44
Security and earrest money deposits - current 6,44 168,86

Assets & liabilities
Income tax recelvable (net of provisions) 3

5,749.09 |Reclnssification items

Balances with Government authoritles - non current 186,3 419.92 |Reclasslfication items
Balances with Government suthorities - current 9,935.37 8.878.52 |Reclassification Items
Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 34,775.54 33,688.04 |Reclassification items

Trade receivables & Contract liabilities

Trade receivables 14,977.86 13,926.86 |Reclassification items
Contract liabilitles 1,572.01 521.01 |Reclassification items
Revenue & Other es

Revenue from operations A7, 748,88 382,905.88 |Reclassification ltems
Advertising and sales promation ey 33,739.96 28,896.96 |Reclassification items
Other income

Other non-operating income 1,263.03 259,03 |Reclass

i» [in

Government grant income 143.90 1,147.90 [Reclassiflc
Expenses =

Employee benafits axpense

Cost of raw material and components consumed 21,631,78 25.451.A7 |Reclassification |taris
Consumption of packing materials 3.509.96 -

Frelght cartage and other dlstribution cost 3,674.73 3,364.60 |Reclassilication tems
Contribution to provident and other fund 3,395.45 2,704.78 |Reclassification jtems

690.67 |Reclassification items

Gratuity expense

The above restatements in previous year have been made, wherever necessary to conform to the current year classlfication/disclesure and doesn't have any
impact on the profit, hence no change in the basic and dlluted earnings per share of the previous year. These restatements doesn’t have any impact at the




Mankind Pharm: Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts are In INR lacs unless otherwise stated

52

53

54

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of Information and documents as required by the transfer pricing leglslation
under Sections 92-92F of the Income- tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such Information and documentation to be
contemporaneous in nature, the Company is In the process of updating the documentation for the Internatlonal transactions entered Into with the
assoclated enterprises during the year and expects such records to be In exlstence latest by such date as required under the law. The management
Is of the oplinlon that Its transactlons covered under transfer pricing regulations are at arm's length so that the aforesaid leglslation wlill not have
any Impact on the financlal statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provislion for taxatlon.

Durlng the year, the Company has capltalised following preoperative directly relatable to the cost of property, plant and equipment being expenses
related to projects and developments, trial run. Consequently, expenses disclosed under the respective heads are net of amounts capitalised by the
Company.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cost of materials consumed 3.61 4.22
Employee beneflts expense 221.81 679.43
Other expenses 809.56 804.00
1,034.98 1,487.64

World Health Organisation (WHO) declared outbreak of Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) a global pandemlc on March 11, 2020, Consequent to this,
Government of Indla declared lockdown on 24 March 2020. On account of this, the Company has, assessed the recoverabllity of recelvables, and
factored assumptions using the various Internal and external information up to the date of appreval of these flnancial statements. On the basis of
evaluation and current indicators of future econamic canditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets and does not
anticipate any impairment to these financial and non-financlal assets other than those already pravided In the books af accounts, The Company will
contlnue to closely monitor any materlal changes to future economic conditions.

The flgures have been rounded off to the nearest lacs of rupees up to two decimal places. The figure 0.00 wherever stated represents value less
than INR 500/-.
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